






PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, Autism is the fastest-growing serious developmental disability in the U.S.; and 

WHEREAS, there is no medical detection or cure for autism; and 

WHEREAS, Autism now affects 1 in 68 children and 1 in 42 boys; and 

WHEREAS, Boys are nearly five times more likely than girls to have Autism; and 

WHEREAS, Autism costs a family $60,000.00 a year on average; and 

WHEREAS, in 2007, the United Nations adopted a Resolution naming April 2nd as World Autism 
Awareness Day; and 

WHEREAS, World Autism Awareness Day celebrates the unique talents and skills of persons 
with Autism and is a day when individuals with Autism are warmly welcomed and embraced in 
community events around the globe; and 

WHEREAS, Autism is one of only three health issues to be recognized by the United Nations 
with its own day; and 

WHEREAS, “Autism Speaks” is the world’s leading Autism science and advocacy organization 
and is dedicated to funding research into the causes, prevention, treatments and a cure for 
Autism; and 

WHEREAS, Autism Speaks,, created Light It Up Blue to shine a light on Autism during the month 
of April; and 

WHEREAS, buildings all over the United States including the City of Leander changed their 
lighting to blue on April 2nd  

NOW, THEREFORE the Mayor and the City of Leander do hereby proclaim April as 

Autism Awareness Month 
Signed this 3rd day of April, 2014. 
                                                                               Attest:             

__________________________                                       _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                   Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



 
 

1                                                                                 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
DEVELOPMENT TOUR 

and 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ March 20, 2014 at 5:30 PM     

   5:30pm – Travisso Development Tour 
   Council will leave from Pat Bryson at 5:30 and reconvene at 7:00 pm for Regular City Council Meeting 
   (No action will be taken by City Council during the tour) 
 
   City Council left Pat Bryson Municipal Hall at 5:30 p.m. to begin the tour. 
   City Council returned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
   7:00 pm  
  1.  Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance  
       Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m. and welcomed those in attendance 
       Council Member Lynch delivered the invocation 
 
  2.  Roll Call 

          All present 
 
          Mayor Fielder recognized Jim Plasik for his birthday and also announced that Clawson 
          Disposal will being delivering the new recycle bins beginning on Monday 
           
 
     3.  Staff Comments:  
          Steve Bosak, Director of Parks & Recreation spoke about the Kite Festival on March 23, 2014 
 
     4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  

       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins.  
 
      David Tobey -  20501 Oak Canyon – spoke about the Firewise Program 

 
  5.  Approval of the minutes: March 6, 2014 
 
  6.  An Ordinance amending Section A7.008 of the City Code of Ordinances to adopt fees for collection  
       and disposal of refuse 
 
  7.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-002: amending Ordinance #05-018,the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for three tracts of land located at 9450 RM 2243, Leander,  
       Williamson County, Texas 
 
 

                                                   Mayor – Christopher Fielder  
                     Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette       Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese  
                     Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch              Place 5 – Jason Dishongh (Mayor Pro Tem) 
          Place 3 – Simon Garcia               Place 6 – David Siebold  
                                                   City Manager – Kent Cagle 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 



 
 

2                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
  8.  Consider a Special Use Permit for the American Cancer Society Relay for Life 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

  
   9.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case # 13-Z-026: Consider a zoning change for 2,118.6 acres, more or 

less for several parcels of land generally located to the west of Bloody Hollow, abutting FM 1431 on 
the south and Nameless Road on the west from SFR-2-A, Single Family Rural, SFR-2-B, Single 
Family Rural, SFR-3-B, Single Family Rural, SFE-2-A, Single Family Estate, SFS-2-A, Single Family 
Suburban, SFS-2-B, Single Family Suburban, SFU-2A, Single Family Urban, SFC-2-A, Single Family 
Compact, MF-2-B, Multi Family, GC-3-A, General Commercial and GC-3-B, General Commercial to 

       PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Travis County, Texas 
       Applicant: Nancy Stroder (Taylor Morrison) on behalf of Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of 
       Texas)     
        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Heath Melton and Nancy Stroder with Taylor Morrison gave a presentation 
 
         David Tobey -  20501 Oak Canyon – spoke against the zoning 
         Judy Tobey -   20501 Oak Canyon – spoke against the zoning 
         Will Powell – 6009 Spindletop Terrace, Round Rock – owner of property at 13012 Angel  
               Springs Drive – concerned about the zoning request 
 
       Action on Zoning Case # 13-Z-026: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for several tracts of land located to the west of Bloody Hollow, abutting FM 1431 on the south and  
       Nameless Road on the west., Leander, Travis County, Texas 
 
      Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve with the Planning & Zoning  

Commission recommendations without the sidewalk recommendation.  Second by Council 
Member Garcia.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
10.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-003: Consider a zoning change for 0.40 acres, more or less,   
       for a parcel of land located at 1101 CR 177 from interim zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural, to HC- 
       4-D, Heavy Commercial, formerly known as LI-4-D, Light Industrial, Leander, Williamson County,  
       Texas 
       Applicant: Richard E. & Sharon Kaydean Bott 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained  
       Richard Bott, applicant explained the request 
 
       Grady Bruce, 808 CR 177 – spoke against 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-003: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a parcel of land located at 1101 CR 177, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
      Motion made by Council Member Siebold to deny as per the Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommendation and to waive fees for administrative costs for a resubmitted request.  Second 
by Council Member Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 



 
 

3                                                                                 

 
  
 
11.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-004: Consider a zoning change for 3.37 acres, more or less,  
       for two parcels of land located at 409 & 503 Horseshoe Drive from TF-2-B, Two-Family to MF-2-B,  
       Multi-Family, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Gary Eli Jones on behalf of Ricky Shipman 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-004: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
       for two parcels of land located at 409 & 503 Horseshoe Drive, Leander Williamson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve with the Planning & Zoning  
       recommendations.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese.  Motion passes, 6 to 1 with  
       Council Member Lynch voting against     
    

 
12.  Consider an Ordinance Establishing a Train Horn Quiet Zone for the Railroad Crossing at Hero Way 

Adjacent to US Hwy. 183 
       Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
  
13.  Consider Task Order KFA-23  with K. Friese & Associates, Inc. for professional services for Ridgmar 
       Landing Water Line Improvements 
       Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Lynch. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye”  
 
14.  Consider a Resolution Agreement to provide matching funds as required by the Criminal Justice 
       Division (CJD) of the Governor’s Office grant for the creation of a Victim Services Coordinator  
       position. 
       Greg Minton, Chief of Police explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
15.  Consider an Amendment to the Drought Contingency Plan (DCP), Ordinance 11-027-00 
       Pat Womack, Director of Public Works explained 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
16.  Consider action to approve an Ordinance renaming a portion of CR 290 to High Lonesome 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 



 
 

4                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17.  Council Members Closing Statements 
 
      Mayor Fielder asked Tom Yantis to schedule a date for the Smart Code work session with 
      the consultants 
 
      Council Members gave their closing statements 
     
18.  Adjournment 
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:39 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________               _________________________________ 
       Christopher Fielder, Mayor             Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 

           



 
 

1                                                                                 

 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL CALLED CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ March 27, 2014 at 6:00 PM     

  
1. Open meeting 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m.     

  2.  Roll Call 
        All present 

     
3.  First public hearing on annexation of an area of land being 594 acres, more or less, being         

generally located along the planned northern extension of Lakeline Blvd. to Old 2243 West 
and including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson 
and Travis Counties, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits. 

      Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
        Linda Hall, 2501 Old Quarry Rd – spoke against  
  
4.  First public hearing on annexation of an area of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, being 

generally located north of CR 264 and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and including the abutting 
streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson County, Texas and adjacent 
and contiguous to the city limits. 

      Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
      No speakers 
5.  First public hearing on annexation of an area of land being 304.13 acres, more or less, and 

52.290 acres, more or less, being generally described as the Ridgmar Landing area north of 
East Crystal Falls Parkway, south of RR 2243 and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and including 
the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson County, Texas 
and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits. 

     Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
     John Sommerfeld 101 Windemere – spoke against 

       Paul Cooke, 302 Ridgmar – spoke against 
       Karen Burns, 29 Fair Oaks St – spoke against 
       Chris Hodde, 200 Ridgmar Rd – spoke against 
       Becky Wise, 501 Ridgmar Rd – spoke against 
       Kyle Riggen, 507 Ridgmar Rd – spoke against 
       David Latimer, 603 Ridgmar Rd – spoke against 
       Step, 604 Ridgmar Rd. – spoke against 
       Robert R. Payne, 104 Ridgmar Rd – spoke against 
       Kelley Martin, 15 Windemere W – spoke against 
       Chris Gagne, 6 Warfield – spoke against 

                                                   Mayor – Christopher Fielder  
                     Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette       Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese  
                     Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch              Place 5 – Jason Dishongh (Mayor Pro Tem) 
          Place 3 – Simon Garcia               Place 6 – David Siebold  
                                                   City Manager – Kent Cagle 

PUBLIC HEARING:  NO ACTION 



 
 

2                                                                                 

        
 
 
 
       Kevin Shuff, 41 Fair Oaks St – spoke against        
       Lindy Sebesta, 6 Fair Oaks St. – spoke against   
       Dale Raveney, 7 Windemere E – spoke against 
       Lisa Fletcher, 123 Windemere – spoke against 
       Kevin Dalby, 3 Warfield – spoke against 
        

 
6.  First Reading of An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 145.26 acres, more or 

less, and 52.290 acres, more or less, in Williamson County, Texas, being generally located at 
the Kittie Hill Airport location, north of Hero Way, west of Ronald Reagan Boulevard and south 
of the San Gabriel River and including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; 
approving a service plan for the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability 
clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and other related matters. 

      Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
7.  Adjournment    

     With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          Attest: 
 

 
___________________________________________                                   _____________________________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor             Debbie Haile, TRMC – City Secretary 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 
 Council Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 145.26 
acres, more or less, and 52.290 acres, more or less, in Williamson County, Texas, being 
generally located at the Kittie Hill Airport location, north of Hero Way, west of Ronald 
Reagan Boulevard and south of the San Gabriel River and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; making 
findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for 
open meetings and other related matters. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for February 20, 2014 and 
March 6, 2014 was approved by City Council on January 16, 2014.    The first reading of 
the ordinance was conducted on March 27, 2014 and the second and final reading is 
scheduled for April 3, 2014. This is a voluntary annexation in accordance with the 
development agreement for the development of the former Kittie Hill Airport property to 
be known as Palmera Ridge. 
 
  
Origination:       Applicant 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council conduct the second and final 
reading of the annexation ordinance.   
                        

 Attachments:     Ordinance with exhibits 

                              

 
  Prepared by:    Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services 
   
   

















 ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ANNEXING TWO PARCELS 

OF LAND BEING 145.26, MORE OR LESS, ACRES AND 52.290, MORE OR LESS, 
ACRES LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, INCLUDING THE 
ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AT THE REQUEST OF THE 
PROPERTY OWNER; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, is a home rule municipality authorized by State law to 
annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the properties, as hereinafter described, made written request for the 
City to annex such properties in compliance with the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the properties are adjacent and contiguous to the present city limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant the owner’s request that the City annex 
said properties; 
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this Ordinance in 
accordance with §43.063 of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published not more than twenty (20) nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the properties to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  All portions of the following described properties, including the abutting roadways and 
rights-of-way (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), not previously annexed into the City, 
are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

(1) All that certain tract or parcel of land being 145.26 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly described in the Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 



 (2) All that certain tract or parcel of land being 52.290 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly described in the Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes 

 
SECTION 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this Ordinance, 
made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and are 
further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those 
which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be and 
hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Leander. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established therefore. 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



 
Exhibit “A” 

 
     Property Descriptions 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation proceedings 
for the tract(s) and parcel(s) of land described more fully hereinafter (the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner of the subject property (the “Owner”) has requested annexation of the 
subject property and Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is exempt 
from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure shall be provided for the subject property pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of the “Development and Annexation Agreement (Kittie Hill Property)” (the “Development 
Agreement”); provided that, except for municipal service provided for in the Development Agreement, 
municipal services shall be provided on the same terms and conditions as such services are provided to 
other similarly situated properties currently within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all requirements have been satisfied and the City is authorized by the 
City Charter and Ch. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City agrees to provide the following services for the subject property 
on the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: Routine patrols of accessible areas, radio response to calls for 

police service and all other police services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows:  Fire protection by the 

present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the volunteer fire fighting 
force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for Emergency Medical Services 
will be provided with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: Solid waste collection and services as now 

being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 



 D. Animal control as follows:  Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities, or by 
contract with a third party, as provided within the City. 

 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows:  On the effective date of annexation, the zoning 

jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to include the subject property, and, until the zoning of 
the subject property is established by ordinance after annexation, the ETJ Property, as such term is 
defined in the Development Agreement, shall be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B”; provided that the 
ETJ Property shall be entitled to be developed with the land uses as more specifically provided in 
the Development Agreement.  It is the City’s intent to zone the subject property at the Owner’s 
request in a manner that is not inconsistent with such uses, as provided in the Development 
Agreement.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider the 
applicant’s request to process a zoning application and zone the subject property for such use and 
development following final annexation of the subject property.  

 
I. Library service:  Service by present personnel, equipment, and facilities within the 

 City. 
 

 J. Storm Water Management:  Owner will provide storm water system at its own expense, 
which will be inspected by City Engineers at the time of completion.  The City will then maintain 
the storm water system upon acceptance of the system by the City.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the plans 
and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will be 
provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) The City intends to provide water services to the subject property pursuant to the 

Development Agreement, and the terms of the Development Agreement applicable to water 
service are incorporated herein by reference.  Save and except as provided in the Development 
Agreement, the City will provide water service in accordance with the applicable ordinances, 
rules, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of water 
service.  The Owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject property as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject property and 
any off-site improvements required by the Development Agreement, water service will be 
provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are 



applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, 
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The water system will be accepted 
and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and 
terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect 
at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  In the 
event of a conflict between this Municipal Services Plan and the Development Agreement for the 
subject property, the terms and provisions of the Development Agreement shall govern and 
control. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) The City intends to provide wastewater services to the subject property pursuant to the 

Development Agreement, and the terms of the Development Agreement applicable to wastewater 
service are incorporated herein by reference.  Save and except as provided in the Development 
Agreement,  the City will provide wastewater service in accordance with the applicable rules and 
regulations for the provision of wastewater service in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  The Owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject 
property as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the 
subject property and any off-site improvements required by the Development Agreement, 
wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions 
and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to 
all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater 
system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  
Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under 
the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in 
effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  
In the event of a conflict between this Municipal Services Plan and the Development Agreement 
for the subject property, the terms and provisions of the Development Agreement shall govern and 
control. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property and 
other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of 
the existing streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 



(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and following 
installation, dedication and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public streets, 
roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, subject to and except 
as provided within the terms, conditions and requirements of the Development Agreement, as 
follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore 
is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 
           (iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The Owner agrees 

that no improvements are required by the City on such roadways to service the subject property; 
provided that improvements may be required by the Owner under the City Rules, as such term 
is defined in the Development Agreement.      

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated 
by the City after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property, 
save and except as provided in the Development Agreement, the Owner will be responsible for the 
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area.  Capital Improvements shall be 
designed, constructed and installed by the Owner as provided in the Development Agreement.  
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in exhibits 
attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  
 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 13-Z-026: Consider action on the rezoning of several 

parcels of land generally located to the west of Bloody Hollow, 
abutting FM 1431 on the south and Nameless Road on the west; 
2,118.6 acres more or less: Parcels: 186323, 352969, 353024, 
353246, 353247, 353650, 382583, 459376, 459380-459395, 
459399-459401, 467140-467160, 467162-467187, 467192-
467197, 467200-467213, 467215-467217 467219-467228, 
467230-467233, 467236-467238, 513803, 513809, 796296, 
796297, 796302, 819093, 825510, 827467, 827468.   Currently, 
the property is zoned SFR-2-A (Single-Family Rural), SFR-2-
B (Single-Family Rural), SFR-3-B (Single-Family Rural), SFE-2-
A (Single-Family Estate), SFS-2-A (Single-Family Suburban), 
SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), SFU-2-A (Single-Family 
Urban), SFC-2-A (Single-Family Compact), MF-2-B (Multi-
Family), GC-3-A (General Commercial), and GC-3-B (General 
Commercial).  The property is proposed to be zoned PUD (Planned 
Unit Development); Leander, Travis County, Texas.  

 

Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 

Origination: Applicant: Nancy Stroder (Taylor Morrison) on behalf of Travisso, 
LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of Texas, Inc). 

Financial  
Consideration: None 
 

Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval at the March 13, 2014 
meeting with the following conditions: 

1. The sidewalk along FM 1431 shall be constructed if FM 
1431 is improved to accommodate sidewalks during the 
term of the development agreement. 

2. The applicant will hold a meeting with the neighboring 
property owners to discuss issues raised during the P&Z 
hearing prior to final Council action. 

3. The zoning district permitted in the COM district shall be 
GC-3-A instead of GC-3-B. 



4. The architectural standard in the MU district shall require 
100% masonry on the walls of structures visible from a 
greenbelt. 

5. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron (or tubular metal) 
when constructed along greenbelts. 

 
The City Council unanimously approved the request with the 
Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation at the March 20, 
2014 meeting. 
 

Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Proposed PUD 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
 
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/25/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 13-Z-026 

TRAVISSO PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
Owner: Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of Texas, Inc) 
 
Current Zoning: SFR-2-A (Single-Family Rural) 
 SFR-2-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 SFR-3-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 SFE-2-A (Single-Family Estate) 
 SFS-2-A (Single-Family Suburban) 
 SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 SFU-2-A (Single-Family Urban) 
 SFC-2-A (Single-Family Compact) 
 MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
 GC-3-A (General Commercial) 
 GC-3-B (General Commercial).   
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the west of Bloody Hollow, abutting 

FM 1431 on the south and Nameless Road on the west and is 
approximately 2,118.6 acres in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B 
OCL 

Established Single-Family Homes, Grand Mesa Neighborhood 
Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 

EAST SFR-2-B Established Single-Family Homes, Grand Mesa Neighborhood 

SOUTH OCL Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 

WEST OCL Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 
        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  This integrated project will 
include a blend of single-family, multiple family housing types and commercial 
development.  The intent of this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to 
assure compatibility with adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial 
properties within the region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that includes multi-family and commercial 
development located along major roadways.  The proposal includes residential lot widths ranging 
from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over one hundred twenty (120’) feet wide.  The applicant 
has incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a well integrated neighborhood plan 
providing a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The original zoning case for this property was heard by the Planning & Zoning Commission on 
April 26, 2012, the City Council on May 3, 2012 and approved on May 17, 2012.  A revision to 
this portion of the project was heard by the Planning & Zoning Commission on September 13, 
2012, the City Council on September 20, 2012, and approved on October 4, 2012.     
 
PROPOSED USE COMPONENTS 
The PUD proposal includes three zoning districts:  MU (Mixed Use), COM (Commercial), and 
RES (Residential).   
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

The table below identifies which district each use component is permitted and the permitted 
percentages. 
 

Use RES 
District 

MU 
District 

COM 
District 

Allowed 
with 

Limitations 
(See Section 

III.D) 

Allowed 
Percent 

Single Family Compact (SFC) X    
20% max 

Single Family Urban (SFU) X    
N/A 

Single Family Suburban (SFS) X    
20% min 

Single Family Estate (SFE) X    25% min 
Single Family Rural (SFR) X    
Single Family Townhome (SFT)  X   50% acreage 

& 
300 units max 

Single Family Limited (SFL)  X   
Multi-Family (MF)  X   
General Commercial (GC)  X X X N/A 

 
The MU district permits the development of uses listed in the MF (Multi-Family), SFL (Single-
Family Limited), SFT (Single-Family Townhome) and/or GC (General Commercial) use 
components from the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  No more than 300 multi-family units may 
be developed in the PUD.  No more than 50% of the gross acreage may be developed with the 
multi-family or residential use components, the remaining 50% shall consist of uses permitted in 
the COM district or open space.   
 
The COM district permits uses allowed in the GC (General Commercial) use component.  The 
following uses are prohibited: 

1. Venues with a primary use of live, amplified outdoor music; 
2. Outdoor animal boarding; 
3. Animal crematory; 
4. Farms or truck gardens; 
5. Funeral homes; 
6. Manufactured housing and accessory building sales; 
7. Office/Warehouse including painting, plumbing or other similar commercial service; 

provided that professional offices, medical offices, public offices, and similar offices are 
permitted; 

8. Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, unless such use is only a secondary 
and incidental part of the commercial use of such site; 

9. Auto body shop; and 
10. Processing of dry cleaning on premises. 

 
The RES district permits the uses allowed in the SFC (Single-Family Compact), SFU (Single-
Family Urban), SFS (Single-Family Suburban), SFE (Single-Family Estate), and SFR (Single-
Family Rural) use components.  The property will be developed to include not less than 2,100 
and not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots.  The Development Agreement limits the 
maximum density to 3,173 units.  A minimum of a 250 foot buffer area adjacent to Grand 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Mesa/Northern Crystal Falls residential property, is restricted to SFE and SFR use components 
only. 
 
PROPOSED SITE & ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS 
 
RES District 
The site component for the RES District  will comply with the Type 2 site component.  The 
proposed architectural component will include 65% masonry overall, 85% masonry for the front 
elevation, 100% masonry for the first floor all sides, and 100% masonry for the second floor side 
and rear facing walls when street and greenbelt.  The current architectural component is Type A 
and requires 85% masonry for the entire structure. 
 
MU District 
The permitted zoning districts in the MU District include: 
 MF-2-B 
 MF-2-A 
 SFT-2-B 
 SFL-1-B 
 GC-3-A 

The applicant is proposing the Type 2 site component for multi-family development.  This site 
component requires that at least 35% of the units have at least one enclosed garage parking 
space.  Currently, the multi-family portion of this property is zoned MF-2-B.  This district limits 
the density to 18 units per acre.  The proposed MF-2-A would allow for a density of 25 units per 
acre.  The proposed GC-3-A district is consistent with the current zoning of the property.   
 
COM District 
The permitted zoning districts in the COM District includes GC-3-B.  Currently, the general 
commercial portions of this property are zoned GC-3-B along Nameless Road and GC-3-A along 
FM 1431.  The proposed Type B architectural component will change the required masonry from 
85% overall to 85% for first story and 50% overall.  In addition, the design features would be 
reduced from 7 to 4. 
 
ADDITIONAL VARIATIONS  
The applicant is requesting the following variations from the City Ordinances: 
 Allowing temporary model home parking areas and permitting crushed granite as the 

parking lot material with a time frame of 10 years.  Currently, we require a special use 
permit to be submitted and reviewed by Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council.  Including this provision, would waive the requirement for the special use 
permit. 

 Allowing tertiary entrance signs at entryways into sections within the PUD and are 
permitted only in subdivisions that exceed 50 acres. They may be used to identify various 
sections that are 15 acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the PUD.  
Currently, the ordinance requires that the sections are a minimum of 25 acres in size.  In 
addition, they are requesting to increase the sign face from 10 square feet to 12 square 
feet.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

 Allowing decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures.  A license agreement 
will also be required to allow the decorative poles. 

 Not requiring sidewalks along FM 1431 frontage due to safety concerns.  Sidewalks will 
be provided internally to all properties developed in the Mixed Use Areas, developed 
commercially, or developed as multi-family to maintain pedestrian connectivity to 
sidewalks abutting Divided Collector Road (Travisso Parkway) and Neighborhood 
Collector Road (Osage). 

 Requiring additional landscaping for residential development (see Exhibit D). 
 Requiring increased lot depths, lot area, and building square footages for residential 

development (see Exhibit D). 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD with the condition that the proposed COM 
district includes the Type A architectural component instead of the proposed Type B.  The 
proposed PUD meets the intent of the current zoning, while allowing more flexibility with the 
location of the single-family districts.  This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to 
incorporate a variety of land uses while maintaining high form standards.  The modification to 
the architectural requirements increases the amount of masonry for the portion of the homes that 
is visible from the street and greenbelt areas.  This requirement is reduced to a percentage that is 
between the Type A and Type B, however, the homes visible from the streets and greenbelts will 
be 100% masonry.  The requested PUD meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 



CARNEROSSUBDIVISION

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 2

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1FALCON OAKS,SEC 2FALCON OAKS,SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 4

BLEDSOE
PARK

VISTA RIDGE,PH 3

VISTA RIDGE,PH 1
VISTA RIDGE,PH 4

MASON RANCH

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 6

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WHITESTONE
ESCAPROCK AT CRYSTALFALLS, SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH V

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
HOMESTEAD

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 4

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

VILLAS ATVISTA RIDGE

TRAVISSOSEC 1

VISTA RIDGE,PH 2A2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3B

2A

3B

2B

2A

2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3A

2A

3B 2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2B

2A

2A

2A

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

3B

2B
2B

1B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B
2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2A 2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

1B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B
2B

2B

2B2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2A

2A

2B

2A

2B
2B

2B

FM 1431 RD

NAMELESS RD

DRVW

WOODALL DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

N RIM DR N 
RI

DG
E 

CI
R

VISTA ROCK DR

WA
GO

N 
WA

Y

LEGEND TRL

INDIAN CHIEF DR

BU
CK

 R
UN

W NEW HOPE DR

BROWN BLUFF CIR

SHADY MOUNTAIN RD

WHITETAIL PASS

HE
DD

ER
 C

IR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 800
Feet

ZONING CASE 13-Z-026
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Travisso PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CARNEROSSUBDIVISION

MASON CREEK.SEC 2

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1FALCON OAKS,SEC 2FALCON OAKS,SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 4

BLEDSOE
PARK

VISTA RIDGE,PH 3

VISTA RIDGE,PH 1
VISTA RIDGE,PH 4

MASON RANCH

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 6

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WHITESTONE
ESCAPROCK AT CRYSTALFALLS, SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH V

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
HOMESTEAD

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 4

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

VILLAS ATVISTA RIDGE

TRAVISSOSEC 1

VISTA RIDGE,PH 2A

FM
 14

31 
RD

NAMELESS RD

N RIM DR

EL
 C

IE
LO

DRVW

WOODALL DR

LIO
NS

 LA
IR

LAJIT
AS

SPYGLASS HILL

W WHITESTONE BLVD

PALOS VERDES

GOOD NIGHT TRL

DREAM CATCHER DR

N 
RI

DG
E C

IR

VISTA ROCK DR

SID
EW

IN
DE

R

TR
AIL

S E
ND RD

ROARING FORK

INDIAN CHIEF DR

BU
CK

 R
UN

MIRADOR
BROWN BLUFF CIR

CA
ME

LB
AC

K

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 1,200 2,400
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 13-Z-026 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Travisso PUD



EXHIBIT C 

 
Travisso Planned Unit Development  

 
I. General Notes 

 
A. The PUD consists of approximately 2118.6 acres (the “Property”) located in Travis 

County, Leander, Texas formerly known as Crystal Falls West or Nameless Valley 
Ranch, as particularly described in Exhibit A attached to this PUD ordinance. 

 
B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 

governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

II. Zoning Districts 

A. The PUD consists of three use districts depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout 
& Land Use Plan attached hereto, including:  
1. MU (Mixed Use) containing approximately 64.3 acres; 
2. COM (Commercial) containing approximately16.6 acres; and  
3. RES (Residential) containing approximately 2,037.7 acres. 

III. Use Components  

A. Allowed Uses.  The following table contains the Use Components allowed within the 
zoning use district boundaries shown on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD ordinance. 

 
 

Use 
RES 
District

MU 
District

COM 
District

Allowed 
with 
Limitations 
(See Section 
III.D) 

Allowed %

Single Family Compact (SFC) X 20% max 

Single Family Urban (SFU) X N/A 

Single Family Suburban (SFS) X 20% min 

Single Family Estate (SFE) X 25% min 
Single Family Rural (SFR) X 
Single Family Townhome (SFT) X 50% acreage 

& 
300 units max 

Single Family Limited (SFL)  X   
Multi-Family (MF) X 
General Commercial (GC) X X X N/A

  



B. RES District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 

1. The Property will be developed to include not less than 2,100 and not more than 
3,173 single-family residential lots. 

2. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFC, SFE, SFR, SFU and SFS Use Components, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit 2 attached to this PUD ordinance, in accordance with 
the following requirements: 
(a) SFC – themaximumpercentage of SFC lots allowed to be developed in the project 

is 20% of the total lots developed in the PUD(635 lots, if the maximum3,173 
single-family residential lots are developed in the PUD); 

(b) SFE and SFR – the minimum percentage of SFE and SFR lots is 25% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD (793 lots, if the maximum 3,173 single-family 
residential lots are developed in the PUD); and  

(c) SFU and SFS –any lots not developed as SFC lots may be developed as SFU, 
SFS, SFE, and SFR lots; the minimumpercentage of SFS lots is 20% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD, provided the PUD shall not include more than 3,173 
single-family residential lots. 

3. A minimum of 250’ buffer area adjacent to Grand Mesa/Northern Crystal Falls 
residential property, as shown in the hatched area on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance, may be developed as SFE and SFR Use Components only. 

C. Mixed Use District Use Limitations. 

1. Mixed Use is defined as combining different permitted uses in the same building 
and/or having multiple permitted uses within the MU District.  The different uses are 
not required to be within the same building or the same Legal Lot or Legal Tract. 

2. No more than 50% of the gross acreage in the MU district may be developed utilizing 
MF, SFL and/or SFT Use Components.  No more than 300 MF Units may be 
developed in the PUD.  The remainder of the property in the MU District shall be 
utilized for commercial uses permitted in the COM District or open space. 
 

D. General Commercial District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 
 
1. All uses permitted in the GC use component of the Zoning Ordinance are permitted in 

the COM District except for the following: 
(a) Venues with a primary use of live, amplified outdoor music; 
(b) Outdoor animal boarding; 
(c) Animal crematory; 
(d) Farms or truck gardens; 
(e) Funeral homes; 
(f) Manufactured housing and accessory building sales; 



(g) Office/Warehouse including painting, plumbing or other similar commercial 
service; provided that professional offices, medical offices, public offices, and 
similar offices are permitted; 

(h) Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, unless such use is only a 
secondary and incidental part of the commercial use of such site; 

(i) Auto body shop; and 
(j) Processing of dry cleaning on premises. 

 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

A. RES District.   
1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached as 

Exhibit 2 to this PUD ordinance.  This table sets out lot size, home size, setback, 
architectural, masonry, and landscaping, increasing the standards of many traditional 
zoning categories.  To the extent that these requirements are inconsistent with the 
requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site Standards), Article VII 
(Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural Standards) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Development Standards set forth in this PUD ordinance and Exhibit 2 
attached hereto will apply.   

2. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

3. Temporary model home parking areas are permitted uses in the RES District in areas 
adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) years after 
the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In addition to 
authorized materials, such temporary parking areas may be constructed with crushed 
granite.   

 
B. MU District.   

1. Development in the MU District of the PUD will comply with one of the following 
Use, Site and Architectural Component standards: 
(a) MF-2-B; 
(b) MF-2-A; 
(c) SFT-2-B; 
(d) SFL-1-B or 
(e) GC-3-A. 

2. The architectural standard in the MU District shall require 100% masonry on walls of 
structures visible from a greenbelt. 
 

C. COM District.  Development in the COM District will comply with one of the following 
Use, Site and Architectural Component standards: 
1. GC-3-A 



Signage 
 
D. Tertiary entrance signs constructed within the PUD shall be regulated by Ordinance No. 

03-023-00 and the Zoning Ordinance, with the following exceptions.  Tertiary entrance 
signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD and are permitted only 
in subdivisions that exceed fifty (50) acres. They may be used to identify various sections 
that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the 
PUD.Tertiary entrance signs shall be comprised entirely of stone or masonry, with 
engraved lettering set within the stone or with pin-mounted aluminum or steel letters.  
The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be limited to a total size of twelve (12) 
square feet.  The owner shall submit to the city restrictive covenants providing for 
perpetual maintenance of such signs by the homeowners’ association for Travisso before 
a permit will be issued for such signs. 
 

V. Lighting  
 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article V (Site Component) of the Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date of this PUD 
Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along Travisso Parkway will be 
decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures. 
 

VI. Sidewalks 
 

A. Pedestrian sidewalks are not required to be constructed or installed within the PUD along 
the portions of RM 1431 abutting the Property unless and until such time as the Texas 
Department of Transportationimproves RM 1431 in such areas abutting the Property for 
the purpose of providing areas for pedestrian facilities, at which time sidewalks shall be 
constructed or installed along the portions of RM 1431 abutting the Property in a timely 
manner.The foregoing provision shall automatically expire and be of no force and effect 
on November 1, 2037. 
 

B. Sidewalks will be provided internally to all properties developed in the Mixed Use Areas, 
developed commercially, or developed as multi-family to maintain pedestrian 
connectivity to sidewalks abutting Divided Collector Road (Travisso Parkway) and 
Neighborhood Collector Road (Osage). 
 

VII. Fencing 
A. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal when constructed along 

greenbelts. 

  



Exhibit 1 
 

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
  





Exhibit 2 
 

RES District Development Standards 
 

 

 



Zoning Use 

Component

Lot 

Width

Lot 

Depth 

Lot 

Area

Lot 

Width

Lot 

Depth 

Lot 

Area

Building 

Sq Foot Front Setback

Side 

Setbacks

Street 

Side 

Setback

Rear 

Setback Architectural / Masonry Req Landscaping

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental 

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 3 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 25 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 25 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 30 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 30 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 2 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 40 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 40 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

GENERAL NOTES OG - Ornamental Grasses

GC - Ground Cover 

P - Perennials

SFR 120 160 19200 3000120 160 19200 15
25 (30 street facing 

garage)
7.5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

15SFE 80 150 12000 260090 150 13500

20 (25 street facing 

garage)
5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

20 (25 street facing 

garage)
7.5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

15

SFS 70 130 9100 2400
20 (25 street facing 

garage)
5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

15

SFU 60 130 7800 185070

RES DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS

SFC 50 130 6500 1400
20 (25 street facing 

garage)
5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

107800

Interior Corner

60 130

130 9100

80 130 10400







Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM SFR-2-A (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL), SFR-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY 
RURAL), SFR-3-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL), SFE-2-A (SINGLE-
FAMILY ESTATE), SFS-2-A (SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN), SFS-2-
B (SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN), SFU-2-A (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN), 
SFC-2-A (SINGLE-FAMILY COMPACT), MF-2-B (MULTI-FAMILY), 
GC-3-A (GENERAL COMMERCIAL), AND GC-3-B (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 2,118.6 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and 
Exhibit “B”; and identified by tax identification numbers 186323, 352969, 353024, 353246, 
353247, 353650, 382583, 459376, 459380-459395, 459399-459401, 467140-467160, 467162-
467187, 467192-467197, 467200-467213, 467215-467217 467219-467228, 467230-467233, 
467236-467238, 513803, 513809, 796296, 796297, 796302, 819093, 825510, 827467, 827468.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFR-2-A (Single-Family Rural), SFR-2-B (Single-Family Rural), 
SFR-3-B (Single-Family Rural), SFE-2-A (Single-Family Estate), SFS-2-A (Single-Family 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Suburban), SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban), SFU-2-A (Single-Family Urban), SFC-2-
A (Single-Family Compact), MF-2-B (Multi-Family), GC-3-A (General Commercial), and GC-
3-B (General Commercial) to PUD (Planned Unit Development) known as the Travisso PUD.  
The PUD shall be developed and occupied in accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan 
attached as Exhibit “C”, which are hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and 
the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a 
conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set 
forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 20th day of March, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



 

Exhibit A 
Property Description 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



CARNEROSSUBDIVISION

WESTVIEWMEADOWSSEC 4

MASON CREEK.SEC 2

MASON CREEK.SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 1FALCON OAKS,SEC 2FALCON OAKS,SEC 3

FALCON OAKS,SEC 4

BLEDSOE
PARK

VISTA RIDGE,PH 3

VISTA RIDGE,PH 1
VISTA RIDGE,PH 4

MASON RANCH

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 6

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

CRYSTAL FALLS
GOLF COURSE

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WHITESTONE
ESCAPROCK AT CRYSTALFALLS, SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH V

LEANDER
PUBLIC

LIBRARY

MASON
HOMESTEAD

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 4

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 3

VILLAS ATVISTA RIDGE

TRAVISSOSEC 1

VISTA RIDGE,PH 2A2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3B

2A

3B

2B

2A

2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

3A

2A

3B 2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2B

2A

2A

2A

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

3B

2B
2B

1B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B
2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2A 2B

2B

2B
2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

1B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2A

2B
2B

2B

2B2B

2A

2B

2B

2B

2A

2A

2B

2A

2B
2B

2B

FM 1431 RD

NAMELESS RD

DRVW

WOODALL DR

W WHITESTONE BLVD

N RIM DR N 
RI

DG
E 

CI
R

VISTA ROCK DR

WA
GO

N 
WA

Y

LEGEND TRL

INDIAN CHIEF DR

BU
CK

 R
UN

W NEW HOPE DR

BROWN BLUFF CIR

SHADY MOUNTAIN RD

WHITETAIL PASS

HE
DD

ER
 C

IR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 800
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case
13-Z-026
Travisso PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



EXHIBIT C 

 
Travisso Planned Unit Development  

 
I. General Notes 

 
A. The PUD consists of approximately 2118.6 acres (the “Property”) located in Travis 

County, Leander, Texas formerly known as Crystal Falls West or Nameless Valley 
Ranch, as particularly described in Exhibit A attached to this PUD ordinance. 

 
B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 

governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

II. Zoning Districts 

A. The PUD consists of three use districts depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout 
& Land Use Plan attached hereto, including:  
1. MU (Mixed Use) containing approximately 64.3 acres; 
2. COM (Commercial) containing approximately16.6 acres; and  
3. RES (Residential) containing approximately 2,037.7 acres. 

III. Use Components  

A. Allowed Uses.  The following table contains the Use Components allowed within the 
zoning use district boundaries shown on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD ordinance. 

 
 

Use 
RES 
District

MU 
District

COM 
District

Allowed 
with 
Limitations 
(See Section 
III.D) 

Allowed %

Single Family Compact (SFC) X 20% max 

Single Family Urban (SFU) X N/A 

Single Family Suburban (SFS) X 20% min 

Single Family Estate (SFE) X 25% min 
Single Family Rural (SFR) X 
Single Family Townhome (SFT) X 50% acreage 

& 
300 units max 

Single Family Limited (SFL)  X   
Multi-Family (MF) X 
General Commercial (GC) X X X N/A

  



B. RES District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 

1. The Property will be developed to include not less than 2,100 and not more than 
3,173 single-family residential lots. 

2. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFC, SFE, SFR, SFU and SFS Use Components, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit 2 attached to this PUD ordinance, in accordance with 
the following requirements: 
(a) SFC – themaximumpercentage of SFC lots allowed to be developed in the project 

is 20% of the total lots developed in the PUD(635 lots, if the maximum3,173 
single-family residential lots are developed in the PUD); 

(b) SFE and SFR – the minimum percentage of SFE and SFR lots is 25% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD (793 lots, if the maximum 3,173 single-family 
residential lots are developed in the PUD); and  

(c) SFU and SFS –any lots not developed as SFC lots may be developed as SFU, 
SFS, SFE, and SFR lots; the minimumpercentage of SFS lots is 20% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD, provided the PUD shall not include more than 3,173 
single-family residential lots. 

3. A minimum of 250’ buffer area adjacent to Grand Mesa/Northern Crystal Falls 
residential property, as shown in the hatched area on Exhibit 1 attached to this PUD 
ordinance, may be developed as SFE and SFR Use Components only. 

C. Mixed Use District Use Limitations. 

1. Mixed Use is defined as combining different permitted uses in the same building 
and/or having multiple permitted uses within the MU District.  The different uses are 
not required to be within the same building or the same Legal Lot or Legal Tract. 

2. No more than 50% of the gross acreage in the MU district may be developed utilizing 
MF, SFL and/or SFT Use Components.  No more than 300 MF Units may be 
developed in the PUD.  The remainder of the property in the MU District shall be 
utilized for commercial uses permitted in the COM District or open space. 
 

D. General Commercial District Permitted Uses and Limitations. 
 
1. All uses permitted in the GC use component of the Zoning Ordinance are permitted in 

the COM District except for the following: 
(a) Venues with a primary use of live, amplified outdoor music; 
(b) Outdoor animal boarding; 
(c) Animal crematory; 
(d) Farms or truck gardens; 
(e) Funeral homes; 
(f) Manufactured housing and accessory building sales; 



(g) Office/Warehouse including painting, plumbing or other similar commercial 
service; provided that professional offices, medical offices, public offices, and 
similar offices are permitted; 

(h) Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, unless such use is only a 
secondary and incidental part of the commercial use of such site; 

(i) Auto body shop; and 
(j) Processing of dry cleaning on premises. 

 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

A. RES District.   
1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached as 

Exhibit 2 to this PUD ordinance.  This table sets out lot size, home size, setback, 
architectural, masonry, and landscaping, increasing the standards of many traditional 
zoning categories.  To the extent that these requirements are inconsistent with the 
requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site Standards), Article VII 
(Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural Standards) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Development Standards set forth in this PUD ordinance and Exhibit 2 
attached hereto will apply.   

2. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

3. Temporary model home parking areas are permitted uses in the RES District in areas 
adjacent to or nearby model home sales areas for a maximum of ten (10) years after 
the issuance of a site development permit for such parking area.  In addition to 
authorized materials, such temporary parking areas may be constructed with crushed 
granite.   

 
B. MU District.   

1. Development in the MU District of the PUD will comply with one of the following 
Use, Site and Architectural Component standards: 
(a) MF-2-B; 
(b) MF-2-A; 
(c) SFT-2-B; 
(d) SFL-1-B or 
(e) GC-3-A. 

2. The architectural standard in the MU District shall require 100% masonry on walls of 
structures visible from a greenbelt. 
 

C. COM District.  Development in the COM District will comply with one of the following 
Use, Site and Architectural Component standards: 
1. GC-3-A 



Signage 
 
D. Tertiary entrance signs constructed within the PUD shall be regulated by Ordinance No. 

03-023-00 and the Zoning Ordinance, with the following exceptions.  Tertiary entrance 
signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD and are permitted only 
in subdivisions that exceed fifty (50) acres. They may be used to identify various sections 
that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the 
PUD.Tertiary entrance signs shall be comprised entirely of stone or masonry, with 
engraved lettering set within the stone or with pin-mounted aluminum or steel letters.  
The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be limited to a total size of twelve (12) 
square feet.  The owner shall submit to the city restrictive covenants providing for 
perpetual maintenance of such signs by the homeowners’ association for Travisso before 
a permit will be issued for such signs. 
 

V. Lighting  
 
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article V (Site Component) of the Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date of this PUD 
Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along Travisso Parkway will be 
decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures. 
 

VI. Sidewalks 
 

A. Pedestrian sidewalks are not required to be constructed or installed within the PUD along 
the portions of RM 1431 abutting the Property unless and until such time as the Texas 
Department of Transportationimproves RM 1431 in such areas abutting the Property for 
the purpose of providing areas for pedestrian facilities, at which time sidewalks shall be 
constructed or installed along the portions of RM 1431 abutting the Property in a timely 
manner.The foregoing provision shall automatically expire and be of no force and effect 
on November 1, 2037. 
 

B. Sidewalks will be provided internally to all properties developed in the Mixed Use Areas, 
developed commercially, or developed as multi-family to maintain pedestrian 
connectivity to sidewalks abutting Divided Collector Road (Travisso Parkway) and 
Neighborhood Collector Road (Osage). 
 

VII. Fencing 
A. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal when constructed along 

greenbelts. 

  



Exhibit 1 
 

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
  





Exhibit 2 
 

RES District Development Standards 
 

 

 



Zoning Use 

Component

Lot 

Width

Lot 

Depth 

Lot 

Area

Lot 

Width

Lot 

Depth 

Lot 

Area

Building 

Sq Foot Front Setback

Side 

Setbacks

Street 

Side 

Setback

Rear 

Setback Architectural / Masonry Req Landscaping

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental 

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 3 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 25 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 25 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 30 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 30 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 2 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 40 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 40 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 

greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 

ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

GENERAL NOTES OG - Ornamental Grasses

GC - Ground Cover 

P - Perennials

SFR 120 160 19200 3000120 160 19200 15
25 (30 street facing 

garage)
7.5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

15SFE 80 150 12000 260090 150 13500

20 (25 street facing 

garage)
5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

20 (25 street facing 

garage)
7.5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

15

SFS 70 130 9100 2400
20 (25 street facing 

garage)
5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

15

SFU 60 130 7800 185070

RES DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS

SFC 50 130 6500 1400
20 (25 street facing 

garage)
5

15 (20 

street 

facing 

garage)

107800

Interior Corner

60 130

130 9100

80 130 10400



AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #14-Z-004: Consider action on the rezoning of two 

parcels of land located at 409 & 503 Horseshoe Drivefor 3.37 acres 
more or less;.Parcels #R036482 and R036483. Currently, the 
property is zoned TF-2-B (Two-Family). The property isproposed 
to be zoned MF-2-B (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, 
Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Gary Eli Jones on behalf of Ricky Shipman 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the MF-2-A (Multi-Family) district with 
the condition that the density is limited to 15 units per acre.  The 
motion passed with a 4 to 2 vote at the March 13, 2014 meeting.  
The City Council approved the Planning & Zoning Commission 
recommendation with a 5 to 1 vote at the March 20, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map  
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Letter of Intent 
 5. Ordinance 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/26/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-004 
409 and 503 Horseshoe Dr 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Ricky Shipman 
 
Current Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
    
Proposed Zoning: MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is at 409 & 503 Horseshoe and is approximately 3.37 acres 

in size.   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  TF-2-B 
MF-2-B 

Developed Single Family Home 
Developed Single Family Home 

EAST GC-3-C Developed Commercial Property 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Homes 

WEST SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
MF – MULTI-FAMILY:   

Features:  Apartments (25 un./ac. if Type A; 18 un./ac. if Type B) 
Intent:  Development of multi-family dwelling structures. Such components are generally 

intended to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive uses 
such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  Such components are also intended to create 
more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the community but are intended to 
be utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to strictly multi-family residential 
development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) acres of contiguous land 
having a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a collector or higher 
classification street. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components.  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned TF-2-B (Two-Family) district, and the applicant is requesting to 
rezone the property to MF-2-B (Multi-Family) district.  Immediately north of this property is a 
TF-2-B district with a developed single family home, and a MF-2-B district with a developed 
single family home.  The property to the east is zoned as GC-3-C (General Commercial) and is a 
developed commercial property. The southern properties are zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single Family 
Urban / Manufactured Home), and are developed with single family homes. The property to the 
west is zoned SFU/MH-2-B and is developed with a single family home. 
 
This property was requested to be rezoned from SFU/MH-2-B to TF-2-B at the June 13th, 2013 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  The request was approved by the Commission, and 
subsequently approved by the City Council. 
 
The intent of the Multi-Family district is to serve as a buffer between single family uses, and 
more intensive commercial developments or arterial class roadways. The goal is to create more 
variety in housing, while seeking to avoid creating a zoning district of Multi-Family larger than 
25 acres.  Additionally, access to Multi-Family zoned property should be provided to the 
property through the use of a collector street. The Type B architectural requirement will allow 
for 18.0 units/acre, and the Type A architectural requirement would allow for 25.0 units/acre.  
Additionally, the Type 2 site component requires that 35% of the units are provided with an 
enclosed garage parking space. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets several of the intent statements for the Multi-Family district.  It 
would provide a buffer between existing single family developments to the west and buffer more 
intensive commercial developments immediately to the east.  The property is approximately 
three and a half acres, and avoids forming a 25 acre contiguous tract of Multi-Family zoning.  



Attachment # 1                 

 

However, the property is located on a residential class street, and fails to meet the intent 
statement for locating Multi-Family districts on collector or higher classified streets.  Staff 
recommends approval of this request, as the proposed request does satisfy the majority of the 
intent statements outlined in the composite zoning ordinance.  The Commission may wish to 
consider limiting the unit density of the property given the project’s size. 
 
 



OLDTOWNESTATES

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 1
LISD LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 A

DD
ITI

ON

ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER
MS

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

LION ACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

MASON
CREEK
PARK

5D

4C3A3A

5D

3A

4C

3A

4C

4C

5D

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

HORSESHOE DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R
ME

SA
 D

R

SHERRY DR
183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-004
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
409 & 503 Horseshoe Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr



OLDTOWNESTATES

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 1
LISD LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 A

DD
ITI

ON

ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER
MS

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

MAGNOLIA CREEK

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 2

MASONCREEKNORTH,SEC 1

LION ACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 2

MASON
CREEK
PARK

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

SONNY DR

HORSESHOE DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R
ME

SA
 D

R

GL
AS

S 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-004 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
409 & 503 Horseshoe Dr

S WEST DR



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4

msiwek
Typewritten Text



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM TF-2-B (TWO-FAMILY) TO MF-2-B (MULTI-FAMILY); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 3.37 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 
commonly referred to as 409 & 503 Horseshoe Drive, Leander, Texas; legally described as Lot 21 
and Lot 22, Block B, Leander Heights, Section 2, more particularly described in Document Number 
2013000842 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification numbers R036482 and R036483.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from TF-2-B (Two-Family) to MF-2-B (Multi-Family) with the condition 
that the density is limited to 15 units per acre.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 20th day of March, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



5D

4C3A3A

5D 5D

3A

4C

3A

4C

4C

4C

4C

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

SONNY DR

HORSESHOE DR

ME
SA

 D
R

S B
RU

SH
Y S

T

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

ATKIN ST

LA
CY

 D
R

MASON ST

SHERRY DR

GL
AS

S 
DR

BLUEBONNET TRL

TA
BL

ER
OC

K 
CI

R

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-004
409 & 503 Horseshoe Drive

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

April 3, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Connelly’s Crossing, Phase 1A 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Connelly’s 
Crossing, Phase 1A have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  
All documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including 
record drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer 
licensed in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, 
electronic files of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year 
term Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on April 3, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through April 3, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Connelly’s Crossing, Phase 1A. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 























AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

April 3, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph 1 Sec 1 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Mason Ranch, Ph 1 
Sec 1 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on April 3, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through April 3, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph 1 Sec 1. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





































AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

April 3, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph 2 Sec 1 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Mason Ranch, Ph 2 
Sec 1 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on April 3, 2014, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through April 3, 2016.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Mason Ranch, Ph 2 Sec 1. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

































AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 3, 2014 

 
 
Subject: Consider Contract Awards to Lease & Purchase Golf Course Maintenance Equipment  
 
Background: Three bids were submitted bids February 17, 2014 for golf course maintenance equipment 
(2 Mowers, Greens Roller, Verticutter, Bedknife Grinder and Reel Grinder). Bid tabulations, evaluation 
criteria and award recommendations are attached. 
 
Please note that for Items #1 and #2 staff recommends 48-month leases from the highest bidder.  The 
highest bids are recommended because the two lower bidders did not meet all of the required 
specifications, as follows: 

1. Off-set reels are not provided.  Off-set reels provide for clean passes on greens and tees to 
eliminate tire marks; 

2. Tires allowing higher clearance are not provided.  Higher clearances are needed to allow mowers 
to ride over obstacles; 

3. Mowers have lower fuel capacities; and 
4. Mowers don’t meet EPA Tier 2 or Interim Tier 4 emission requirements 

 
Vendors were asked to submit bids in a variety of methods (purchase, lease, lease-to-own, new and 
refurbished equipment) so as to obtain the most favorable terms and cost.  We utilized all of these 
methods and reduced the cost by $8,038 (by not just leasing the equipment as we usually do). 
 
Funds for the equipment are included in the FY 13-14 Budget. 
 
Financial Consideration:  

• Year 1 ($32,984.12) 
• Years 2 through 4 ($19,131.12 per year) 
• Year 5 ($4,185.60) 
• Total Cost for the 5-Year Period ($94,563.08) 

  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award contracts for the specified 
equipment and terms to the following vendors: 

1. Riding Mower - 48 month lease in the amount of $29,891.04 from Austin Turf & Tractor 
2. Riding Mower - 48 month lease in the amount of $29,891.04 from Austin Turf & Tractor 
3. Greens Roller - $11,353 purchase from C&M Equipment 
4. Verticutter - $2,500 purchase from Austin Turf & Tractor 
5. Bedknife Grinder – 60 month lease-to-own in the amount of $10,287 from Austin Turf & Tractor 
6. Reel Grinder – 60 month lease-to-own in the amount of $10,641 from Austin Turf & Tractor 

 
Attachments: Bid Tabulations, Evaluation Criteria & Award Recommendations   
 
Prepared by: Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
  Joy Singleton, Purchasing Agent 
  Wayne Slaton, Golf Course Superintendent 



Bid Info: City of Leander

Golf Course Maintenance Equipment

Solicitation No. #S14-011 LEASE COMPARISON

Opening: 02/17/2014

Max 

Points

C&M Equipment Austin Turf and Tractor

Professional Turf 

Products

60 57 57 60

Item #1 $29,760.00 $29,891.04 $28,465.44

Item #2 $29,760.00 $29,891.04 $28,465.44

$59,520.00 $59,782.08 $56,930.88

10 10 10 10

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

30 20 30 25

Eclipse 322 does not meet all 

specifications.                           

2-year warranty.  30 days to 

deliver.  7, 9 11 or 15 blades.  

22 inch reel width.    13.3 HP 

deisel engine.   19x9.5x8 tires - 

limited clearance..  5 gal fuel 

capacity.  Transport speed 9 

mph.                          ITEM 

DOES NOT PROVIDE OFFSET 

REELS.  

Meets specifications.                                               

2-year warranty.                                    

20 days to deliver.    19.6 HP 

deisel engine.  22 inch reel 

width.  20x10-10 tires.  7.9 U.S. 

gal fuel capacity.  City's 

experience with service from 

this vendor has been 

exceptional.                                       

ITEM DOES PROVIDE OFFSET 

REELS.                 Vendor 

notes EPA Tier 2, Interim Tier 

4 compliance.  

 Greensmaster 3420 does not 

meet all specifications.                                     

2-year warranty or 1500 

operational hours.                                                   

30 days to deliver.                                     

23.5 hp deisel.                                            

6 gal fuel capacity.                                                     

10 mph transport speed.   

19x10.5x8 tires - limited 

clearance.                                      

21" reel width.                     

ITEM DOES NOT PROVIDE 

OFFSET REELS.  

TOTAL: 
100 87 97 95

Award

TOTAL

Responsiveness

Item meets specifications, warranty length, replacement parts available.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Price and Score

Reputation of Bidder/ Goods and Services and Quality of Goods and 

Service

Meets City's Needs  

Riding Mower, 48-Month Lease Term

Riding Mower, 48-Month Lease Term



 

 

  

INTEROFFICE MEMO 

DATE: March 24, 2013 

TO: Steve Bosak; Grant Collyns 

FROM: Joy Simonton 

RE: Recommendation for Awards for Solicitation #S14-011 Golf Course Maintenance Equipment 

   

The Purchasing Division recommends the following split award (document attached) for the purchase of 
golf course maintenance equipment in accordance with the Best Value Evaluation Process.   

Three (3) responses were received.  Two (2) HUBS were notified of the solicitation.   

Item #1             48 Month Lease $29,891.04  Austin Turf and Tractor 

Item #2             48 Month Lease $29,891.04  Austin Turf and Tractor 

Item #3  Purchase $11,353.00   C&M Equipment 

Item #4  Purchase $2,500.00   Austin Turf and Tractor 

Item #5             60 Month Lease to Own $10,287.00 Austin Turf and Tractor 

Item #6             60 Month Lease to own $10,641.00 Austin Turf and Tractor 

 

 

 

JB 

 

 

CC: FILE 



Bid Info: City of Leander

Golf Course Maintenance Equipment

Solicitation No. #S14-011 PURCHASE OPTION

Opening: 02/17/2014

Max Points

C&M Equipment Austin Turf and Tractor Professional Turf Products

60 59 51 60

Item #3 $11,353.00 $13,139.17 $11,214.21

$11,353.00 $13,139.17 $11,214.21

10 10 10 10

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of golf 

course maintenance equipment.

30 30 28 20

16 hp                                                           

Comes with trailer.                                                 

2 year warranty on vehicle.                               

2 year warranty on engine.                                                            

13 hp                                                  

Comes with trailer.                            

No clearance issues.                                       

5 year warranty on vehicle.                                

1 year warranty on engine.

6 hp                                                     

No trailer.  Clearance issue for 

transportation.                                                    

2 year warranty.

TOTAL: 
100 99 89 90

Award

Responsiveness

Meets City's Needs  

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Price and Score

Greens Roller 

TOTAL

Reputation of Bidder/ Goods and Services and Quality of Goods and 

Service



Bid Info: City of Leander

Golf Course Maintenance Equipment

Solicitation No. #S14-011 PURCHASE OPTION

Opening: 02/17/2014

Max Points

C&M Equipment Austin Turf and Tractor Professional Turf Products

60 40 60 22

Item #4 $3,772.00 $2,500.00 $6,934.47

$2,500.00

Corrected per Vendor 

Clarification

10 10 10 10

Vendor is engaged in sale 

of golf course 

maintenance equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of golf 

course maintenance equipment.

30 10 30 10

Not compatible with 

mower selected.

Verticutter must be compatible 

with the riding mower.                                                 

2012 Model                           

Not compatible with mower 

selected.

TOTAL: 
100 60 100 42

Award

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Price and Score

Verticutter   

TOTAL

Reputation of Bidder/ Goods and Services and Quality of Goods and 

Service

Responsiveness

Meets City's Needs  

$3,772.00 $6,934.47



Bid Info: City of Leander

Golf Course Maintenance Equipment

Solicitation No. #S14-011 LEASE TO OWN COMPARISON

Opening: 02/17/2014

Max Points

C&M Equipment Austin Turf and Tractor Professional Turf Products

60 27 60 28

Item #5 $16,080.00 $10,287.00 $18,904.38

Item #6 $31,080.00 $10,641.00 $26,237.25

$47,160.00 $20,928.00 $45,141.63

10 10 10 10

Vendor is engaged in sale 

of golf course 

maintenance equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of 

golf course maintenance 

equipment.

Vendor is engaged in sale of golf 

course maintenance equipment.

30 30 30 30

Meets specifications.              

2 year limited warranty.              

2014 models.  

Meets specifications.                                                   

6 month motor warranty.                                

1 year frame warranty.                                                

2006 models.

Meets specifications.                             

2 year limited warranty.              

2014 models.                        

Automated interface. 

TOTAL: 
100 67 100 68

Award

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Price and Score

Meets City's Needs  

GRINDERS

Bedknife Grinder, 60 Month Lease

Reel Grinder, 60 Month Lease

TOTAL

Reputation of Bidder/ Goods and Services and Quality of Goods and 

Service

Responsiveness



AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on annexation of an area of land being 594 acres, 
more or less, being generally located along the planned northern extension of Lakeline Blvd. to 
Old 2243 West and including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located 
in Williamson and Travis Counties, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first reading of the ordinance is 
scheduled for May 1, 2014 and the second and final reading is scheduled for May 15, 2014.  This 
is an involuntary annexation.  
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council conduct the second public hearing on this 
annexation.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution  
2. Map 
3. Annexation Schedule 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 

















OLD 2243 WEST

RM 2243

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N BAGDAD RD

CR 279
S BAGDAD RD

N Lakeline Blvd Area
594 Ac.

County Line
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Proposed Annexation Areas
N Lakeline Blvd Area

Ë
0 5001,000

Feet



 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE FOR INVOLUNTARY ANNEXATIONS 
RIDGEMAR LANDING +/- 304.13 ACRES & N. LAKELINE BOULEVARD +/- 594 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
February 20, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings March 27, 2014 and April 3, 2014; Council 
directs development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By February 24, 2014 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
March 12, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
March 19, 2014** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE; 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

March 27, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

April 3, 2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
May 1, 2014* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

May 15, 2014; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the May 
1st First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on annexation of an area of land being 5.52 acres, 
more or less, being generally located north of CR 264 and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and 
including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson 
County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first reading of the ordinance is 
scheduled for May 1, 2014 and the second and final reading is scheduled for May 15, 2014. This 
is a voluntary annexation.  
     
Origination:  Applicant 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council conduct the second public hearing on this 
annexation.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution  
2. Map 
3. Annexation Schedule 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 

















SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
SPENN TRACT +/- 2.701 ACRES 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
February 20, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings March 27, 2014 and April 3, 2014; Council 
directs development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By February 24, 2014 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
March 12, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
March 19, 2014** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE; 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

March 27, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

April 3, 2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
May 1, 2014* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

May 15, 2014; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the May 
1st First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second public hearing on annexation of an area of land being 304.13 acres, 
more or less, and 52.290 acres, more or less, being generally described as the Ridgmar Landing 
area north of East Crystal Falls Parkway, south of RR 2243 and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. 
and including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson 
County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first reading of the ordinance is 
scheduled for May 1, 2014 and the second and final reading is scheduled for May 15, 2014.  This 
is an involuntary annexation.  
     
Origination:  Applicant 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council conduct the second public hearing on this 
annexation.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution (including map and service plan) 
2. Annexation Schedule 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 

















RM 2243

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

Ridgmar Landing Area
304.13 Ac.

County Line
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Proposed Annexation Areas
Ridgmar Landing Area

Ë
0 500 1,000

Feet



 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE FOR INVOLUNTARY ANNEXATIONS 
RIDGEMAR LANDING +/- 304.13 ACRES & N. LAKELINE BOULEVARD +/- 594 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
February 20, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings March 27, 2014 and April 3, 2014; Council 
directs development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By February 24, 2014 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
March 12, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
March 19, 2014** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE; 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

March 27, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

April 3, 2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
May 1, 2014* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

May 15, 2014; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the May 
1st First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Public Hearing on the extension of the term of a franchise for 
Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. to provide recycling and solid waste collection and disposal 
services within the City of Leander. 
 
Background:On February 6, 2014, City Council considered the request from Al Clawson 
Disposal to approve a five-year extension to its current contract with the City;  approve 
rate increases (first since 2008) and approve the use of 95 gallon containers for recycling 
services every other week.   At the March 20, 2014 regular meeting, City Council 
approved amending the current rate ordinance to reflect those changes.  Residential rates 
would increase from $12.25 per month (before tax) to $16.66.  Commercial container 
rates are unchanged.  The City Charter requires published notice of a public hearing and 
two readings of any ordinance granting a franchise.  The public hearing has been 
advertised for this meeting and the second reading will be conducted on April 17, 2014.  
At the conclusion of the second reading, the contract amendment with Al Clawson 
Disposal will then be ready for consideration and final action. 
 
Origination:Robert G. Powers,Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: Residential rates, including the increase for recycling, will go 
up by 36%.  Commercial cart rates will go up by 36% and other commercial rates will 
remain essentially unchanged.  The method of calculating fees for roll-offs will be 
changed from a single rate to a haul charge plus the disposal cost.  This method will 
benefit those with loose, light loads since the disposal fee is based on weight.  City 
Franchise fees will increase proportional to the rate increase and result in additional 
revenue of approximately $51,000. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



AGENDA ITEM #  

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  An Ordinance Extending the Term of a Franchise Granted to 
Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. to Provide Recycling And Solid Waste Collection And 
Disposal Services Within The City Of Leander; Under Ordinance Number 11-007-00. 
 
Background:On February 6, 2014, City Council considered the request from Al Clawson 
Disposal to approve a five-year extension to its current contract with the City;  approve 
rate increases (first since 2008) and approve the use of 95 gallon containers for recycling 
services every other week.   At the March 20, 2014 regular meeting, City Council 
approved amending the current rate ordinance to reflect those changes.  Residential rates 
would increase from $12.25 per month (before tax) to $16.66.  Commercial container 
rates are unchanged.  The City Charter requires published notice of a public hearing and 
two readings of any ordinance granting a franchise.  The public hearing has been 
advertised for this meeting and the second reading will be conducted on April 17, 2014.  
At the conclusion of the second reading, the contract amendment with Al Clawson 
Disposal will then be ready for consideration and final action. 
 
Origination: Robert G. Powers,Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: Residential rates, including the increase for recycling, will go 
up by 36%.  Commercial cart rates will go up by 36% and other commercial rates will 
remain essentially unchanged.  The method of calculating fees for roll-offs will be 
changed from a single rate to a haul charge plus the disposal cost.  This method will 
benefit those with loose, light loads since the disposal fee is based on weight.  City 
Franchise fees will increase proportional to the rate increase and result in additional 
revenue of approximately $51,000. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE TERM OF A FRANCHISE 
GRANTED TO AL CLAWSON DISPOSAL, INC. TO PROVIDE 
RECYCLING AND SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 
SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF LEANDER; UNDER ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 11-007-00; AND MAKING OTHER PROVISIONS 

                                                                                                                                       
 
 WHEREAS, Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. ("Company") operates a recycling, solid waste 
collection and disposal service;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leander (“City”) granted the Company a 
franchise to provide recycling and solid waste collection and disposal services within the City 
under Ordinance Number 11-007-00 (the “Franchise”) for a five year term;  
 
 WHEREAS, under Section 3 of the Franchise, the Council may extend the term of the 
Franchise for increments of  one or more years for up to a five years; 
 

WHEREAS, Company has provided recycling, solid waste collection and disposal 
services in a good and satisfactory manner; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds that an extension of the Contract is in the best interest of 
the public and provides for good and acceptable services within the City at reasonable costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the public interest of the for the City to extend to term of the 
Franchise for an additional five year term;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  Term Extended.  The term of the Franchise is hereby extended for an additional 
five years, which additional five year term shall commence on the fifth anniversary of the 
effective date of the Franchise in Ordinance Number 11-007-00, which is January 20, 2016.  The 
Franchise shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in Ordinance Number 11-007-00, 
which are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was passed was held after a public hearing on the subject of this Franchise, 
and said meeting was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 



 

 

 
Section 3.  Endorsements and Records. The City Secretary is directed to make 
endorsements as appropriate over her/his official hand and the seal of the City on the form 
provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the public record and convenience of the 
citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally passed and adopted and, if the Company 
accepts the Franchise, the date of such acceptance. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
PASSED AND APPROVED on second reading this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
                      
 
      _________________________ 
      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
_______________________________ 
Paige Saenz, City Attorney 
 
 

Al Clawson Disposal, Inc. accepted the foregoing Franchise extension by written 
instrument filed on the ____ day of _______________, 20_____. 

 
 ______________________________ 
 Debbie Haile 
 City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 13-Z-027:  Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of several tracts of land generally located to the 
Southwest of the intersection of San Gabriel Pkwy & US 183; 
150.894 acres more or less; WCAD Parcels #R395875, R031699, 
R524552, and R525192. Currently, the property is zoned PUD 
(Planned Unit Development) and the applicant is proposing an 
amendment to the PUD, Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Mark Baker on behalf of Sentinel Cotter Leander LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval with staff recommendation at 
the March 27, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Proposed PUD 
 5.   Letter of Intent  
 6.   Ordinance 
 7.   Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission March 27, 2014 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/28/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 13-Z-027 

OAK CREEK PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Sentinel Cotter Leander LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property located to the Southwest of the intersection of San Gabriel 

Pkwy & US 183 and includes approximately 150.894 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH PUD/TOD Undeveloped Land located within the TOD 

EAST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Land located within the TOD 

SOUTH 

SFU-2-B 
SFC-2-B 
GC-3-C 

PUD/TOD 

Established Single-Family Homes  
Single-Family Homes under construction (Northside Meadow) 
Undeveloped Property zoned for commercial 
Plain Elementary School 

WEST OCL Established Single-Family Homes (Benbrook Ranch) 
        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  The intent of this zoning district 
is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that will include a variety of housing types as 
well as multi-family development.   The proposal includes detached residential lot widths 
ranging from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over sixty (60’) feet wide and attached townhomes.  
The applicant has incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a well integrated 
neighborhood plan providing a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The PUD proposal includes the following base zoning districts:  SFU-2-B (Single-Family 
Urban), SFC-2-B (Single-Family Compact), SFL-2-B (Single-Family Limited), SFT-2-B 
(Single-Family Townhome), and MF-2-B (Multi-Family).    
 
The table below identifies the proposed development standards for the residential zoning 
districts,  setbacks, and lot sizes for this project.  The primary difference between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the proposed PUD is the lot size and the setbacks associated with the 
SFL-2-B district.  The ordinance currently requires the lot width to be 41 feet and the minimum 
lot size to be 4100 square feet.  The applicant is proposing an alley loaded product associated 
with the SFL-2-B district and is requesting reduced rear and front setbacks.  In addition, each 
zoning district is required to have a minimum of 100 units to ensure a variety of housing types.  
The density of the MF-2-B district is limited to 12 units per acre.  The MF-2-B and SFT-2-B 



Attachment # 1                 

 

districts are limited to townhomes and/or cluster detached single-family condominiums.  
Traditional style apartment complexes are not permitted. 
 

 
RESIDENTIAL USES  

DETACHED  
50 ft. & wider 
lot (SFC/SFU) 

DETACHED 
narrower than  
50 ft. lot (SFL 

base, alley loaded) 

ATTACHED 
Townhome (SFT 

base, alley loaded) 

CLUSTER / MF 
(Setbacks are for 

perimeter) 

Lot Area 
(minimum) 5,500 s.f.  4,000 s.f. 1,800 s.f. n/a 

Lot Width 
(minimum) 50 ft. 40 ft. 20 ft. n/a 

Front Setback 
(minimum) 

20 ft. (25’ street 
facing garage) 15 ft. 10 ft. 20 ft. 

Side Setback 
(minimum) 5 ft. 5 ft. 0 ft./10 ft. 10 ft. building 

separation 

Street Side Setback 
(minimum) 

15 ft. (20’street 
facing garage) 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 15 ft. 6 ft. 6 ft. 20 ft. 

Lot Depth 
(minimum) 110 ft. 100 ft. 90 ft. n/a 

 
 
All residential properties within the SFC-2-B and SFU-2-B base zoning districts shall comply 
with Article 8, Conventional Zone of the 2005 Leander SmartCode.  This section states that 
100% of all first story walls shall be stone, stucco, or brick and 80% of the overall structure is 
stone, stucco, or brick.  The properties with the base zoning districts of SFL-2-B and MF-2-B are 
proposed to be native stone (or synthetic equivalent), brick, stucco, split faced block (for piers, 
foundation walls and chimneys), wood lap siding, or Hardi Plank siding (equivalent or better) 
and shall comply with Exhibit D of the PUD document. 
 
Proposed Variations from the Composite Zoning Ordinance and/or Subdivision Ordinance: 

1. Reduced flag lot width for the water quality ponds from the required 25 feet to 15 feet. 
 
Additional Standards Not Required by the Composite Zoning Ordinance: 

1. Construction of a 6 foot tall masonry wall with columns adjacent to lots that back or side 
onto West Broade Street.  Wrought iron fencing with masonry columns is allowed in 
locations where views into the neighborhood would be desirable.   

2. All lots which back onto parks or floodplain areas shall utilize 6 foot, wrought iron view 
fencing. 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The proposed PUD promotes more flexibility 
with the location of the single-family districts and incorporates a mixture of multi-family and 
single-family townhome uses as a transition from W Broade Street towards US 183.  This 
application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate a variety of land uses while 
maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD meets the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

DEVINE
LAKE
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK

RANCH, SEC 4
BAGDAD

ES

NORTHCREEK,SEC 3
HAWKESLANDING

NORTH CREEKSEC 2

NORTH CREEKSEC 1
NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

H.E.B

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 2

OLD TOWNVILLAGE,SEC 1
LISD LISD

LISD

LEO
CTR

WA
LK

ER
 A

DD
ITI

ON

ATKIN ADDITION

MASONS ADDITION

ORIGINAL TOWN OF LEANDER

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

4C

5D

4C

4C

3A

4C

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C4C

5D

4C
4C

US
 18

3

OLD 2243 WEST

HALSEY DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

N 
US

 18
3

183A TOLL RD FR SB

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W BR
OAD

E S
T

183A TOLL RD FR NB

HERO WAY

RANCHERO RD

N BAGDAD RD

SOUTH BROOK DR

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

OA
K 

GR
OV

E R
D

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

AIKEN DR

CR 276

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

BU
RG

ES
S D

R

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR 279

MATHESON DR

WASHBURN DR

BA
RC

LA
Y 

DR

TABERNASH DR

FLANAGAN DR

W METRO DR

HE
ND

ER
SO

N 
DR

JO
PP

A R
D

HE
NS

LE
Y D

R

LOS ROBLES RD

MIDDLE BROOK DR

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY SA

N 
VI

CE
NT

E 
DR

METRO DR

US
 18

3 S
B

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

E EVANS ST

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

JOE BATES DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 800
Feet

ZONING CASE 13-Z-027
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Oak Creek PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



US
 18

3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

HA
LS

EY
 D

R

N US 183
RE

MI
NG

TO
N 

DR

RANCHERO RD

W BR
OAD

E S
T

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

SOUTH BROOK DR

W METRO DR

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

JO
PP

A R
D

LOS ROBLES RD

NORTH CREEK BLVD

CAMINO ALTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

SA
WYE

R T
RL

ES
TA

NC
IA 

WA
Y SA

N 
VI

CE
NT

E 
DR

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

ES
CO

ND
ID

O 
DR

METRO DR

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

JOE BATES DR

RUBLES CT

SA
BIN

AS
 D

R

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 13-Z-027 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Oak Creek PUD



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page1 of 20 

Exhibit C 
 

Oak Creek Planned Unit Development 
 
A. Purpose and Intent 
 

The Oak Creek PUD is composed of approximately 150 acres, as described in Exhibit 
A (Field Notes).  The development of this property is planned as a high quality, 
residentialcommunity with a variety of residential product types. 
 
Oak Creek has been designed to create walkable, pedestrian friendly neighborhoods.  
The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance and 
function desired for this community.  A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan has 
been attached to this PUD, Exhibit 1, to illustrate the design intent for the property.  
The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a guide to 
illustrate the general community vision and design conceptsand is not intended to serve 
as a final document.  The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plandepicts a mix of 
residential products and open space areas which are contemplated within the 
community. 

 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall complythe City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit C. 
 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning 
districts have been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
various residential products proposed within the PUD. 
 

 For Lots 60’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFU Single Family Urban (SFU-
2-B) 

 For Lots 50’-59’: Base Zoning District SFC Single Family Compact (SFC-2-B) 
 For Lots 40’-49’: Base Zoning District SFL Single Family Limited (SFL-2-B) 
 For Single Family Townhomes: SFT – Single Family Townhouse (SFT-2-B) 
 For Cluster Housing: MF – Multi Family (MF-2-B) 

 
This PUD allows the flexibility to mix the various residential products and define 
boundaries for each lot type during the platting process.  Each plat or site plan 
submitted to the City will identify the use at the time of City Submittal. All 
neighborhoods within the PUD will comply with the modified development standards 
of this PUD.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City requirement, the 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply.  In the event of a conflict between 
this PUD and the base zoning districtfound in the Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
 
 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page2 of 20 

 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 

Exhibit 1 attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Oak Creek community.  The design of the community is not final, 
and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  This PUD 
zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 
The Oak Creek project is comprised of a mix of various single family detached 
products as well as townhomes and cluster products. Oak Creek will include a cohesive 
network of open spaces, including parks, water quality areas, floodplain and trail 
corridors.  The open spaceand trails system combined with the sidewalk network will 
be critical in establishing a walkable, inviting community.  
 
The product placement within the community is planned to provide the following 
development pattern: 
 
SFL Single Family Limited 
Alley loaded, 40’ lots will be located west of West Broade Street and adjacent to the 
southern boundary line which is shared with the Northside Meadow development.  The 
extension of South Brook Drive will be faced with alley loaded product to provide an 
attractive architectural street scene which will ultimately connect to the adjacent TOD 
uses located along Highway 183.  The alley loaded product will also reduce driveways 
along South Brook Drive to Plain Elementary School. 
 
SFC Single Family Compact/SFU Single Family Urban 
The area north of the alley loaded product and west of West Broade Street will contain 
a mix of 50’, 60’ and 70’ conventional single familyproduct types with access points to 
the central park and trail system.  Extensions of Coulee Drive and Middle Brook Drive 
will connect into the new neighborhoods, providing a seamless connection to the 
adjacent Benbrook Ranch and Heritage Glen developments. 
 
MF Multi Family/SFT Single Family Townhouse/Cluster 
The parcels located east of West Broade Street are directly adjacent to the area 
designated as T5 on the City of Leander TOD map.  The parcels are planned for higher 
density attached townhomes or cluster with a maximum density of 12 units per acre.  
The cluster product is a detached single family unit that is developed as a condo 
regime.  If a cluster product is proposed, the site will be processed as a single lot site 
plan.  The units will be sold as condos with common open space areas that are 
maintained by a Homeowners Association. 
 
To ensure a variety and mix of residential product types within Oak Creek, the 
following standards have been established:  

 
Residential Product Type Requirements 

1. MF Multi Family/SFT Single Family Townhome(Cluster, Townhome) 
 Minimum of 100 units 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page3 of 20 

2. SFL Single Family Limited-Alley Loaded lots 
 Minimum of 100 units 

3. SFC Single Family Compact – 50’ lots 
 Minimum of 100 units 

4. SFU Single Family Urban-60’ lots 
 Minimum of 100 units 

 
D. Allowable Uses 
 

The uses allowed within the Oak CreekPUD shall comply with the list of permitted 
uses defined in Article III, Section 17 of the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for 
the appropriate base zoning district.  Cluster housing shall be considered a single 
family, detached use which is permitted in a MF Multi Family base district with a 
maximum density of 12 units per acre. 

 
E. Lot Design Standards 
 

Residential Areas: 
 
Oak Creek will include a variety of residential product types and sizes from detached 
single family homes to townhomes.  The detached residential has been broken into two 
categories based upon lot width and size.  The attached product has been grouped into 
one category and Cluster housing has been designated as an individual category.  
Detailed design standards are included within this PUD, Table E.1, based upon the type 
of residential product.  
 
The Oak Creekdevelopment will comply with the Development Standards set forth in 
Table E.1 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page4 of 20 

Table E.1 – Development Standards 
 

RESIDENTIAL USES  

DETACHED 
50 ft. & wider 
lot (SFC/SFU) 

DETACHED 
narrower than  
50 ft. lot (SFL 

base, alley loaded) 

ATTACHED 
Townhome (SFT 

base, alley loaded) 

CLUSTER/ MF 
(Setbacks are for 

perimeter) 

Lot Area 
(minimum) 5,500 s.f. 4,000 s.f. 1,800 s.f. n/a 

Lot Width 
(minimum) 50 ft. 40 ft. 20 ft. n/a 

Front Setback 
(minimum) 

20 ft. (25’ street 
facing garage) 15 ft. 10 ft. 20 ft. 

Side Setback 
(minimum) 5 ft. 5 ft. 0 ft./10 ft. 10 ft. building 

separation 

Street Side Setback 
(minimum) 

15 ft. (20’street 
facing garage) 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 15 ft. 6 ft. 6 ft. 20 ft. 

Lot Depth 
(minimum) 110 ft. 100 ft. 90 ft. n/a 

 
 
F. Parkland/Open Space/Trails 
 

Open space within Oak Creek will create a network of trails and parkland that creates 
distinct neighborhoods and provides pedestrian walkways throughout the community.  
The Oak Creek PUD will contribute approximately 31 acres of open space consisting of 
parks, floodplain, greenbelt trail corridors and water quality ponds.  The parkland and 
proposed trails and amenities shall be consistent with the approved Concept Plan Sheet 
2 Parkland Exhibit (Exhibit 1). 
 
The following criteria shall be considered allowable for parkland credit within Oak 
Creek. 
 

1. Neighborhood Pocket Parks - Minimum of ½ acre 
2. Minimum of 100’ of street frontage 
3. Water quality pond areas that are designed as an amenity 
4. Open space trail corridors located along West Broade Street between the back 

of lots and the right of way 
 

Oak Creek is located in close proximity to Benbrook Park.  A primary 8’ wide, concrete 
trail will be constructed within the floodplain which will provide a connection point for 
linkage between the Benbrook trail and West Broade Street and from West Broade 
Street east and south to connect with South Brook Drive (see approved Concept Plan 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page5 of 20 

Sheet 2 Parkland Exhibit).  An additional 8’ wide, concrete trail will be provided along 
the entire length of West Broade Street which will meander in and out of the right of 
way and adjacent open space corridor located on the western side of the roadway. 

 
G. Roadway Design 
 

The Oak Creek community will incorporate the following right of way standards. 
 

1. All single family detached roadways for base districts SFU Single Family Urban 
and SFC Single Family Compact shall utilize Primary Residential Street section 
ST-50-28 as defined in Table 10C of the Leander SmartCode. 

 
2. All alley loaded residential product in base districts SFL Single Family Limited 

and SFT Single Family Townhouse shall utilize Primary Residential Street 
section ST-48-26 as defined in Table 10C of the Leander SmartCode. 

 
3. All alleys shall conform to the RA-20 Rear Alley section as defined in Table 

10C of the Leander SmartCode. 
 

4. Streets within a Cluster Housing project will be private streets within a site plan.  
The pavement width shall be a minimum of 26 feet in width with 10 foot Public 
Utility Easements PUE on each side of the street.    

 
5. Due to the pedestrian oriented design and emphasis on an attractive streetscape, 

several traffic calming measures are allowed within Oak Creek.  A traffic circle 
shall be incorporated at the intersection of South Brook Drive and West Broade 
Street with a minimum radius of 70 feet. 

 
6. Additional traffic calming islands shall be allowed along South Brook Drive.  

The minimum pavement width between landscape islands shall be 24 feet.   
Parallel parking shall be allowed on both sides of South Brook Drive with the 
driving lanes tapering at intersections to create traffic calming islands.  Changes 
in paving material such as stamped concrete or pavers shall be allowed at the 
intersections and traffic circle. 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page6 of 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H. Architectural Criteria 
 

All residential product within the SFC Single Family Compact and SFU Single Family 
Urban base zoning districts shall comply with Article 8, Conventional Zone of the 2005 
Leander SmartCode. 
 
All residential product within the SFL Single Family Limited, SFT Single Family 
Townhouse and Multi Family base zoning districts shall comply with Article 6, Tables 
21A, 21B, 21C, 21D, 21E, 21F, 21G, 21H, 21J, 21K, 21L and 21M of the 2005 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page7 of 20 

Leander SmartCode.  See Exhibit 2 of this PUD for the tables.  Masonry standards for 
the SFL, SFT and MF base districts are defined in Table 21A of Exhibit 2 and require 
building walls to be finished in native stone (or synthetic equivalent), brick, stucco, 
split faced block (for piers, foundation walls and chimneys), wood lap siding, or Hardi 
Plank siding (equivalent or better) 

 
I. Walls and Fencing 
 

All lots within Oak Creek which back or side onto West Broade Street shall have a 
solid, 6 foot tall masonry wall with columns located along the rear or side lot line.  
Wrought iron fencing with masonry columns is allowed in locations where views into 
the neighborhood would be desirable.   
 
All lots which back onto parks or floodplain areas shall utilize 6 foot, wrought iron 
view fencing. 
 

J. Flag Lots 
 

In order to provide a legal lot for the water quality ponds within Oak Creek, the 
minimum flag lot width shall be 15 feet.  This provision shall not apply to residential 
lots. 
 

  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page8 of 20 

Exhibit 1 
 

Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
   



P.O.B.

CHARLES COCHRAN SURVEY
ABSTRACT 134

ZONE X

960

960

960

960

960

960

965

965

965

965

965

965

965

9
6

5

965
965

965

965

965

965

96
5

965
965

96
5

965

965

970

970

970

970

970

970

970

9
7

0

970

970

970

97
0

970

970

97
0

970

970

970

970

975

975

975

975

975

975

9
7

59
7

5

975

975

975

975

975

97
5

975

975

975975

975

975

9
7

5

975
975 975

975

980 980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

9
8

0

980

980

980

980

980

980
980

980

980

980

98
0

985

985

985

985

98
5

985

985
985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

98
5

9
8

5

98
5

98
5

990

9
9

0

9
9

0

990

99
0

990 990

990 990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990
990

9
9

0 9
9

0

99
0

990990

990

995

9
9

5

99
5

995

995

995

995

995

995

99
5

995

995

995

995

995

1000

1000

10
00

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1
0

0
0

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005
1005

1010

1010

10
10

10
10

1010

1010

1015

1015

1015

1020

985

E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

L
E
A

N
D

E
R

, 
T

E
X

A
S

O
A

K
 C

R
E
E
K

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L
 S

IT
E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T

A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
 U

S
E
 P

L
A

N

VICINITY MAP

The reproduction, copying or other use of this drawing without the

written consent of SEC Planning, LLC is prohibited.

1.

Issue Date:

5.

4.

2.

3.

130078-SELA
Project No.

2013C

SEC Planning, LLC

Drawn By: MB

December 20, 2013

Issued:

Revisions:

1.

5.

4.

2.

3.

Reviewed By: MB

PUD Submittal 12/20/13

Q:\130078-SELA\Cadfiles\PLANNING\

Submittals\Concept Plan

Submittal\Concept A 2013-08-15.dwg

PUD Plan Revision 02/11/14

PUD Plan Revision 03/20/14

NEW HOPE RD.

B
A
G

D
A
D

 R
D

.

SOUTH SAN GABRIEL

R
EA

G
A

N
 B

LV
D

.

U
.S. 183

U
.S. 183A

FM 1431

S.H. 29

SAN GABRIEL PARKWAY

SITE

LEANDER
CITY OF

4201 W. Parmer Lane Bldg A Suite 220

Austin, TX 78727

T 512.246.7003

F 512.246.7703

www.secplanning.com

Email : info@secplanning.com

LAND PLANNING

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY BRANDING

SEC Planning, LLC
Austin, Texas

SENTINEL/COTTER LEANDER, LLC
9111 JOLLYVILLE ROAD

SUITE 212
AUSTIN, TX 78759
T: 949-922-2512

OWNER: MICHELLE

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, LP
10500 AVERY CLUB DRIVE

SUITE 900
AUSTIN, TX 78717

OWNER: TYLERVILLE

LEGEND
(SFC) (SFU) SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT/SINGLE FAMILY URBAN

MAJOR RIGHT-OF-WAY

FLOODPLAIN

(SFT) (MF) SINGLE FAMILY TOWNHOUSE/CLUSTER

8' TRAIL

(SFL) SINGLE FAMILY LIMITED

FIRE STATION

MASONRY WALL



15

22

17

18

19
20

21

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

66

67

68

70

71

72

16

30

73

69

(64' R.O.W.)

JEANNE A. THOMPSON
3.150 ACRES
(2000053933)

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, L.P.

107.928 AC.

(2004063370)

BLOCK H

BENBROOK RANCH

SECTION ONE

PHASE TWO

(Y/345)

(R
IG

H
T O

F W
A

Y
 W

ID
TH

 V
A

R
IE

S
)

BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT

(1455/296)

APPROX.

CENTERLINE OF

BRUSHY CREEK

APPROX.

CENTERLINE OF

BRUSHY CREEK

APPROX.

CENTERLINE OF

BRUSHY CREEK

ESTATES OF

NORTH CREEK RANCH

SECTION TWO

(V/293)

(50' R
.O

.W
.)

36

35

34

33

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

LEANDER I.S.D.

LOT 1, BLOCK D

HERITAGE GLEN SECTION ONE

(CC/369)

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

10

(6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

14

13
12

11
10

9

8

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

1

BLOCK C

HERITAGE GLEN SECTION ONE

(CC/369)

BLOCK A

(CC/369)

BLOCK K

(V/293)

BLOCK A

(V/293)

14

15

LOT 1A BLOCK B

BENBROOK RANCH

SEC. ONE PH. ONE

(W/295)

LOT 3 BLOCK H

BENBROOK RANCH

SEC. TWO PH. ONE

(CC/3)

LOT 3 BLOCK H

BENBROOK RANCH

SEC. TWO PH. ONE

(CC/3)

PORTION OF

164.466 AC.

(2004063368)

WATERSTONE MICHELLE, L.P.

PORTION OF 164.466 AC.

(2004063368)

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, L.P.

107.928 AC.

(2004063370)

JEANNE A. THOMPSON
3.150 ACRES
(2000053933)

HEB GROCERY CO.

78.978 ACRES

(2003003109)

HEB GROCERY CO.

78.978 ACRES

(2003003109)

BLOCK B

HERITAGE GLEN SECTION ONE

(CC/369)

(50' R
.O.W

.)

U
S

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 183

S
A

B
IN

A
S

 D
R

LEA3

/ /

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

/
/

/
/

X

X

/ / /

/ / /

20' W
ID

E
 S

.W
.B

.T.

E
S

M
T. (549/813)

20' W
ID

E
 S

.W
.B

.T. E
S

M
T.

(594/785)

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION OF

20' WIDE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

(1275/165)

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION OF

20' WIDE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

(1275/165)

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION OF

20' WIDE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

(1275/165)

PARCEL 9E
0.039 AC.

DRAINAGE ESMT.
(2005068805)

PARCEL 10E
0.541 AC.

DRAINAGE ESMT.
(2005068805)

15' UTIL. ESMT.
(200601423)

0.36 AC
EASEMENT

AREA

S

AP

CH

CH

CH

CH

AP

AP

AP

S

UN

ZWA

ZWA

P.O.C.

P.O.B.

WWMH
WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

T

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

T

T

V

V

V

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

MH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

OU

OU

OU

P.O.B.

FEMA ZONE AE

SCALED FROM MAP

FEMA ZONE AESCALED FROM MAP

FEMA Z
ONE A

E

SCALE
D F

ROM M
AP

FEMA ZONE AE

SCALE
D FROM M

AP

FEM
A ZO

NE AE

SCALED FRO
M

 M
AP

SHADED ZONE X

FEMA ZONE AE
SCALED FROM MAP

SHADED ZONE X

FENCE IS

2.1' ON SUBJECT

FENCE IS

0.6' ON SUBJECT

FENCE IS

1.7' ON SUBJECT

FENCE IS

0.4' OFF

SUBJECT

8' X 8'

BOX CULVERTS

18" RCP

CONC.

WALK

CONC.

WALK

CONC.

HEADWALL

CURB &

GUTTER

CURB &

GUTTER

CURB &

GUTTER

STONE

COLUMN

UTILITY

VAULT

GATE

18" CMP

C
O

N
C

.

CONC.

HEADWALL

C
O

N
C

.

CONC.

HEADWALL

GUARDRAIL

ASPH. ROAD

TERMINATES

ON SUBJECT

ASPH. ROAD

TERMINATES

ON SUBJECT

HEADWALL

HEADWALL

HEADWALL

(3) 3'X2' BOX
CULVERTS

(3) 3'X2' BOX
CULVERTS

(3) 3'X2' BOX
CULVERTS

ROCK
GABIAN

ROCK
GABIAN

ASPH. ROAD

EXISTING 8"

WATER LINE AND

VALVE
EXISTING 8" WW

LINE HERITAGE

GLEN SECTION

ONE (TO BE

RELOCATED)

EXISTING WW

SERVICES (TO

BE REMOVED)

EXISTING WATER

QUALITY POND

12" PVC'S UNDER

BERM

12" PVC'S UNDER

BERM

12" PVC'S UNDER

BERM

ROCK GABION

ROCK GABION

EXISTING 8"

WATER LINE AND

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING 8"

WATER LINE AND

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING

OVERHEAD PEC

POWER LINE (TO

BE RELOCATED)

(TO BE
RELOCATED)

21"
WASTEWATER

LINE

21"
WASTEWATER

LINE

FEMA
FLOODPLAIN

MAP #
48491CO455E

FEMA
FLOODPLAIN

MAP #
48491CO455E

(S77°05'00"W 634.71')

(S77°06'00"W 1312.43')

(S77°09'00"W 837.97')

S75°04'10"W 603.40'

S75°04'31"W 1312.45'

S75°07'18"W 837.81'

S82°30'17"E 435.20'

S
21°01'11"E

 1329.18'

(S89°25'00"E 872.34')

(S89°39'00"E 440.74')

L1
L2

L3
L4

L5
L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11 L23

L24

L2
5

L2
6

L2
7

(S71°06'00"W 1225.27')

S69°09'11"W 369.12'

(N
14

°2
7'

00
"W

 1
71

3.
85

')

N
26

°5
8'

52
"E

 2
27

.4
9'

(N
29

°0
2'

00
"E

 2
27

.6
0'

)

N88°19'34"E 440.91'

N88°34'02"E 636.85'

(S
18°59'00"E

 1328.87')

N69°06'43"E 245.27'

N52°34'57"E
 241.82'

N63°51'43"E 260.61'

S73°28'22"W

59.85'

N21°07'13"W 186.87'

(N21°06'28"W 186.93')

N68°51'57"E 154.83'

(N68°53'32"E 154.78')

N
21

°0
6'

14
"W

 7
44

.1
5'

(N
21

°0
6'

35
"W

 7
44

.3
7'

)

S68°53'22"W 750.35'

(S68°53'11"W 750.34')

S
18

°2
4'

23
"E

 2
13

.3
9'

(S
18

°2
5'

46
"E

 2
13

.3
6'

)

C
1

C2

C3

S75°04'10"W

30.83'

S
21

°0
1'

11
"E

 1
47

8.
67

'

N88°34'02"E 234.28'

S26°33'24"E

1360.29'

N
16

°2
9'

54
"W

 1
00

9.
33

'

S74°30'40"W

146.22'

N
20°44'42"W

 453.14'

N
20°44'42"W

 747.56'

(N
20°44'42"W

)

S77°11'17"E 206.16'
(S77°11'25"E 205.87')

S76°33'22"E 999.84'
(S76°33'31"E 999.78')

S76°10'25"E 306.57'
(S76°10'34"E 306.57')

55.92'

N
19

°5
3'

11
"E

13
3.

80
'

S06°04'20"W
0.38'

146.24'

20.00'

L1

L2
L3

L4

L18
L19

L2
0

S
01

°4
5'

13
"W

28
4.

57
'

C1
C2

C3
C4

The reproduction, copying or other use of this drawing without the

written consent of SEC Planning, LLC is prohibited.

1.

Issue Date:

5.

4.

2.

3.

130078-SELA
Project No.

2013C

SEC Planning, LLC

Drawn By: MB

September 6, 2013

Issued:

Revisions:

1.

5.

4.

2.

3.

Reviewed By: MB

City Concept Submittal 09/6/13

Q:\130078-SELA\Cadfiles\PLANNING\

Submittals\Concept Plan

Submittal\Concept A 2013-08-15.dwg

City Concept Submittal 10/7/13

City Concept Submittal 10/24/13

City Concept Submittal 11/05/13

L
E
A

N
D

E
R

, 
T

E
X

A
S

P
A

R
K

L
A

N
D

 E
X

H
IB

IT

M
IC

H
E
L
L
E
 /

 T
Y

L
E
R

V
IL

L
E
 T

R
A

C
T

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 P

L
A

N
 -

 S
H

E
E
T

 2

VICINITY MAP

NEW HOPE RD.

B
A
G

D
A
D

 R
D

.

SOUTH SAN GABRIEL

R
EA

G
A

N
 B

LV
D

.

U
.S. 183

U
.S. 183A

FM 1431

S.H. 29

SAN GABRIEL PARKWAY

SITE

LEANDER
CITY OF

4201 W. Parmer Lane Bldg A Suite 220

Austin, TX 78727

T 512.246.7003

F 512.246.7703

www.secplanning.com

Email : info@secplanning.com

LAND PLANNING

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY BRANDING

SEC Planning, LLC
Austin, Texas

SENTINEL/COTTER LEANDER, LLC
700 LAVACA STREET

SUITE 900
AUSTIN, TX 78701
T: 949-922-2512

OWNER: MICHELLE

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, LP
10500 AVERY CLUB DRIVE

SUITE 900
AUSTIN, TX 78717

OWNER: TYLERVILLE

PARKLAND NOTES:

ALL PROPOSED PARK IMPROVEMENTS WILL MEET CITY PARK & FACILITY EQUIPMENT STANDARDS AND U.S.
CONSUMER PRODUCTS SAFETY COMMISSION - PUBLICATION 32

PARK IMPROVEMENTS WILL INCLUDE A PLAYGROUND, RESTROOM FACILITY, TRAILS, PICNIC AREAS
AND OPEN PLAY

PARKLAND CALCULATIONS

OPTION TWO:

689 / 100 x 3.50 = 24.12 AC.
(# OF DWELLING UNITS) (PROPOSED PUBLIC PARK ACREAGE OR FEE IN LIEU)

689 X $350 = $241,150
(# OF DWELLING UNITS) (VALUE OF PROPOSED PARK IMPROVEMENTS)

FLOODPLAIN
OPEN SPACE / PARKS

TRAIL

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

16.4
14.9

5,700

31.3TOTAL ACRES

ACRES
ACRES
L.F.

LEGEND



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page9 of 20 

Exhibit 2 
 

Architectural Standards Tables 

 
 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page10 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page11 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page12 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page13 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page14 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page15 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page16 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page17 of 20 

 
 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page18 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page19 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page20 of 20 

 

 
 
 



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT #5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR SEVERAL PARCELS OF 
LAND BY CREATING THE OAK CREEK PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT AND ADOPTING A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR SUCH PARCELS; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 

 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Oak Creek Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No.05-026, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Property Rezoned.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creation of the Oak 
Creek PUD and adoption of the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein for 
all purposes for  several parcels, which are herein referred to as the “Property,”generally located to 
the southwest of the intersection of San Gabriel Pkwy and US 183, and more particularly 
described as follows:  those certain parcels of land being 150.894 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly shown and described in Exhibits 
“A” and “B”; and identified by tax identification numbers R395875, R031699, R524552, and 
R525192.  The Property is zoned to the planned unit development district known as the Oak 
Creek PUD within the TODD.  The Property shall be developed and occupied in compliance 
with the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibit C, Article 8 of the Smart Code (defined in the 
TODD Ordinance), the Composite Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable regulations of the 
City.   
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 4. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 5.Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT A























SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

EONCR,SEC 2

EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

BAGDAD
ES

NORTHCREEK,SEC 3

NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

H.E.B

LISD

WA
LK

ER
 A

DD
ITI

ON

MASONS ADDITION

ORIGINAL TOWN OF LEANDER

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

NORTHSIDE MEADOW

4C

4C

5D

4C

3A

4C

4C

4C

US
 18

3

HA
LS

EY
 DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

N US 183

W BR
OAD

E S
T

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

RANCHERO RD

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

183A TOLL RD FR SB

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

SOUTH BROOK DR

BU
RG

ES
S D

R

183A TOLL RD FR NB

NORTH CREEK BLVD

W METRO DR

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

JO
PP

A R
D

HE
NS

LE
Y D

R

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

OA
K 

GR
OV

E R
D

SA
WYE

R T
RL

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

METRO DR

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

ES
CO

ND
ID

O 
DR

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

JOE BATES DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case
13-Z-027
Oak Creek PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page1 of 20 

Exhibit C 
 

Oak Creek Planned Unit Development 
 
A. Purpose and Intent 
 

The Oak Creek PUD is composed of approximately 150 acres, as described in Exhibit 
A (Field Notes).  The development of this property is planned as a high quality, 
residentialcommunity with a variety of residential product types. 
 
Oak Creek has been designed to create walkable, pedestrian friendly neighborhoods.  
The contents of this PUD further explain and illustrate the overall appearance and 
function desired for this community.  A Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan has 
been attached to this PUD, Exhibit 1, to illustrate the design intent for the property.  
The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan is intended to serve as a guide to 
illustrate the general community vision and design conceptsand is not intended to serve 
as a final document.  The Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plandepicts a mix of 
residential products and open space areas which are contemplated within the 
community. 

 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall complythe City of Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit C. 
 
For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, base zoning 
districts have been selected from the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for the 
various residential products proposed within the PUD. 
 

 For Lots 60’ and wider: Base Zoning District SFU Single Family Urban (SFU-
2-B) 

 For Lots 50’-59’: Base Zoning District SFC Single Family Compact (SFC-2-B) 
 For Lots 40’-49’: Base Zoning District SFL Single Family Limited (SFL-2-B) 
 For Single Family Townhomes: SFT – Single Family Townhouse (SFT-2-B) 
 For Cluster Housing: MF – Multi Family (MF-2-B) 

 
This PUD allows the flexibility to mix the various residential products and define 
boundaries for each lot type during the platting process.  Each plat or site plan 
submitted to the City will identify the use at the time of City Submittal. All 
neighborhoods within the PUD will comply with the modified development standards 
of this PUD.  In the case that this PUD does not address a specific City requirement, the 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance shall apply.  In the event of a conflict between 
this PUD and the base zoning districtfound in the Leander Composite Zoning 
Ordinance, this PUD shall control. 

 
 
 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page2 of 20 

 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 

Exhibit 1 attached is a conceptual development plan intended to visually convey the 
design intent for the Oak Creek community.  The design of the community is not final, 
and is subject to refinement during the platting and site planning stages.  This PUD 
zoning document does not constitute plat or site plan approval of the attached plan. 
 
The Oak Creek project is comprised of a mix of various single family detached 
products as well as townhomes and cluster products. Oak Creek will include a cohesive 
network of open spaces, including parks, water quality areas, floodplain and trail 
corridors.  The open spaceand trails system combined with the sidewalk network will 
be critical in establishing a walkable, inviting community.  
 
The product placement within the community is planned to provide the following 
development pattern: 
 
SFL Single Family Limited 
Alley loaded, 40’ lots will be located west of West Broade Street and adjacent to the 
southern boundary line which is shared with the Northside Meadow development.  The 
extension of South Brook Drive will be faced with alley loaded product to provide an 
attractive architectural street scene which will ultimately connect to the adjacent TOD 
uses located along Highway 183.  The alley loaded product will also reduce driveways 
along South Brook Drive to Plain Elementary School. 
 
SFC Single Family Compact/SFU Single Family Urban 
The area north of the alley loaded product and west of West Broade Street will contain 
a mix of 50’, 60’ and 70’ conventional single familyproduct types with access points to 
the central park and trail system.  Extensions of Coulee Drive and Middle Brook Drive 
will connect into the new neighborhoods, providing a seamless connection to the 
adjacent Benbrook Ranch and Heritage Glen developments. 
 
MF Multi Family/SFT Single Family Townhouse/Cluster 
The parcels located east of West Broade Street are directly adjacent to the area 
designated as T5 on the City of Leander TOD map.  The parcels are planned for higher 
density attached townhomes or cluster with a maximum density of 12 units per acre.  
The cluster product is a detached single family unit that is developed as a condo 
regime.  If a cluster product is proposed, the site will be processed as a single lot site 
plan.  The units will be sold as condos with common open space areas that are 
maintained by a Homeowners Association. 
 
To ensure a variety and mix of residential product types within Oak Creek, the 
following standards have been established:  

 
Residential Product Type Requirements 

1. MF Multi Family/SFT Single Family Townhome(Cluster, Townhome) 
 Minimum of 100 units 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page3 of 20 

2. SFL Single Family Limited-Alley Loaded lots 
 Minimum of 100 units 

3. SFC Single Family Compact – 50’ lots 
 Minimum of 100 units 

4. SFU Single Family Urban-60’ lots 
 Minimum of 100 units 

 
D. Allowable Uses 
 

The uses allowed within the Oak CreekPUD shall comply with the list of permitted 
uses defined in Article III, Section 17 of the Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance for 
the appropriate base zoning district.  Cluster housing shall be considered a single 
family, detached use which is permitted in a MF Multi Family base district with a 
maximum density of 12 units per acre. 

 
E. Lot Design Standards 
 

Residential Areas: 
 
Oak Creek will include a variety of residential product types and sizes from detached 
single family homes to townhomes.  The detached residential has been broken into two 
categories based upon lot width and size.  The attached product has been grouped into 
one category and Cluster housing has been designated as an individual category.  
Detailed design standards are included within this PUD, Table E.1, based upon the type 
of residential product.  
 
The Oak Creekdevelopment will comply with the Development Standards set forth in 
Table E.1 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page4 of 20 

Table E.1 – Development Standards 
 

RESIDENTIAL USES  

DETACHED 
50 ft. & wider 
lot (SFC/SFU) 

DETACHED 
narrower than  
50 ft. lot (SFL 

base, alley loaded) 

ATTACHED 
Townhome (SFT 

base, alley loaded) 

CLUSTER/ MF 
(Setbacks are for 

perimeter) 

Lot Area 
(minimum) 5,500 s.f. 4,000 s.f. 1,800 s.f. n/a 

Lot Width 
(minimum) 50 ft. 40 ft. 20 ft. n/a 

Front Setback 
(minimum) 

20 ft. (25’ street 
facing garage) 15 ft. 10 ft. 20 ft. 

Side Setback 
(minimum) 5 ft. 5 ft. 0 ft./10 ft. 10 ft. building 

separation 

Street Side Setback 
(minimum) 

15 ft. (20’street 
facing garage) 15 ft. 15 ft. 20 ft. 

Rear Setback 
(minimum) 15 ft. 6 ft. 6 ft. 20 ft. 

Lot Depth 
(minimum) 110 ft. 100 ft. 90 ft. n/a 

 
 
F. Parkland/Open Space/Trails 
 

Open space within Oak Creek will create a network of trails and parkland that creates 
distinct neighborhoods and provides pedestrian walkways throughout the community.  
The Oak Creek PUD will contribute approximately 31 acres of open space consisting of 
parks, floodplain, greenbelt trail corridors and water quality ponds.  The parkland and 
proposed trails and amenities shall be consistent with the approved Concept Plan Sheet 
2 Parkland Exhibit (Exhibit 1). 
 
The following criteria shall be considered allowable for parkland credit within Oak 
Creek. 
 

1. Neighborhood Pocket Parks - Minimum of ½ acre 
2. Minimum of 100’ of street frontage 
3. Water quality pond areas that are designed as an amenity 
4. Open space trail corridors located along West Broade Street between the back 

of lots and the right of way 
 

Oak Creek is located in close proximity to Benbrook Park.  A primary 8’ wide, concrete 
trail will be constructed within the floodplain which will provide a connection point for 
linkage between the Benbrook trail and West Broade Street and from West Broade 
Street east and south to connect with South Brook Drive (see approved Concept Plan 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page5 of 20 

Sheet 2 Parkland Exhibit).  An additional 8’ wide, concrete trail will be provided along 
the entire length of West Broade Street which will meander in and out of the right of 
way and adjacent open space corridor located on the western side of the roadway. 

 
G. Roadway Design 
 

The Oak Creek community will incorporate the following right of way standards. 
 

1. All single family detached roadways for base districts SFU Single Family Urban 
and SFC Single Family Compact shall utilize Primary Residential Street section 
ST-50-28 as defined in Table 10C of the Leander SmartCode. 

 
2. All alley loaded residential product in base districts SFL Single Family Limited 

and SFT Single Family Townhouse shall utilize Primary Residential Street 
section ST-48-26 as defined in Table 10C of the Leander SmartCode. 

 
3. All alleys shall conform to the RA-20 Rear Alley section as defined in Table 

10C of the Leander SmartCode. 
 

4. Streets within a Cluster Housing project will be private streets within a site plan.  
The pavement width shall be a minimum of 26 feet in width with 10 foot Public 
Utility Easements PUE on each side of the street.    

 
5. Due to the pedestrian oriented design and emphasis on an attractive streetscape, 

several traffic calming measures are allowed within Oak Creek.  A traffic circle 
shall be incorporated at the intersection of South Brook Drive and West Broade 
Street with a minimum radius of 70 feet. 

 
6. Additional traffic calming islands shall be allowed along South Brook Drive.  

The minimum pavement width between landscape islands shall be 24 feet.   
Parallel parking shall be allowed on both sides of South Brook Drive with the 
driving lanes tapering at intersections to create traffic calming islands.  Changes 
in paving material such as stamped concrete or pavers shall be allowed at the 
intersections and traffic circle. 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page6 of 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

H. Architectural Criteria 
 

All residential product within the SFC Single Family Compact and SFU Single Family 
Urban base zoning districts shall comply with Article 8, Conventional Zone of the 2005 
Leander SmartCode. 
 
All residential product within the SFL Single Family Limited, SFT Single Family 
Townhouse and Multi Family base zoning districts shall comply with Article 6, Tables 
21A, 21B, 21C, 21D, 21E, 21F, 21G, 21H, 21J, 21K, 21L and 21M of the 2005 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page7 of 20 

Leander SmartCode.  See Exhibit 2 of this PUD for the tables.  Masonry standards for 
the SFL, SFT and MF base districts are defined in Table 21A of Exhibit 2 and require 
building walls to be finished in native stone (or synthetic equivalent), brick, stucco, 
split faced block (for piers, foundation walls and chimneys), wood lap siding, or Hardi 
Plank siding (equivalent or better) 

 
I. Walls and Fencing 
 

All lots within Oak Creek which back or side onto West Broade Street shall have a 
solid, 6 foot tall masonry wall with columns located along the rear or side lot line.  
Wrought iron fencing with masonry columns is allowed in locations where views into 
the neighborhood would be desirable.   
 
All lots which back onto parks or floodplain areas shall utilize 6 foot, wrought iron 
view fencing. 
 

J. Flag Lots 
 

In order to provide a legal lot for the water quality ponds within Oak Creek, the 
minimum flag lot width shall be 15 feet.  This provision shall not apply to residential 
lots. 
 

  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page8 of 20 

Exhibit 1 
 

Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
   



P.O.B.

CHARLES COCHRAN SURVEY
ABSTRACT 134

ZONE X

960

960

960

960

960

960

965

965

965

965

965

965

965

9
6

5

965
965

965

965

965

965

96
5

965
965

96
5

965

965

970

970

970

970

970

970

970

9
7

0

970

970

970

97
0

970

970

97
0

970

970

970

970

975

975

975

975

975

975

9
7

59
7

5

975

975

975

975

975

97
5

975

975

975975

975

975

9
7

5

975
975 975

975

980 980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

980

9
8

0

980

980

980

980

980

980
980

980

980

980

98
0

985

985

985

985

98
5

985

985
985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

985

98
5

9
8

5

98
5

98
5

990

9
9

0

9
9

0

990

99
0

990 990

990 990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990

990
990

9
9

0 9
9

0

99
0

990990

990

995

9
9

5

99
5

995

995

995

995

995

995

99
5

995

995

995

995

995

1000

1000

10
00

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1000

1
0

0
0

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005

1005
1005

1010

1010

10
10

10
10

1010

1010

1015

1015

1015

1020

985

E
X

H
IB

IT
 1

L
E
A

N
D

E
R

, 
T

E
X

A
S

O
A

K
 C

R
E
E
K

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L
 S

IT
E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T

A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
 U

S
E
 P

L
A

N

VICINITY MAP

The reproduction, copying or other use of this drawing without the

written consent of SEC Planning, LLC is prohibited.

1.

Issue Date:

5.

4.

2.

3.

130078-SELA
Project No.

2013C

SEC Planning, LLC

Drawn By: MB

December 20, 2013

Issued:

Revisions:

1.

5.

4.

2.

3.

Reviewed By: MB

PUD Submittal 12/20/13

Q:\130078-SELA\Cadfiles\PLANNING\

Submittals\Concept Plan

Submittal\Concept A 2013-08-15.dwg

PUD Plan Revision 02/11/14

PUD Plan Revision 03/20/14

NEW HOPE RD.

B
A
G

D
A
D

 R
D

.

SOUTH SAN GABRIEL

R
EA

G
A

N
 B

LV
D

.

U
.S. 183

U
.S. 183A

FM 1431

S.H. 29

SAN GABRIEL PARKWAY

SITE

LEANDER
CITY OF

4201 W. Parmer Lane Bldg A Suite 220

Austin, TX 78727

T 512.246.7003

F 512.246.7703

www.secplanning.com

Email : info@secplanning.com

LAND PLANNING

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY BRANDING

SEC Planning, LLC
Austin, Texas

SENTINEL/COTTER LEANDER, LLC
9111 JOLLYVILLE ROAD

SUITE 212
AUSTIN, TX 78759
T: 949-922-2512

OWNER: MICHELLE

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, LP
10500 AVERY CLUB DRIVE

SUITE 900
AUSTIN, TX 78717

OWNER: TYLERVILLE

LEGEND
(SFC) (SFU) SINGLE FAMILY COMPACT/SINGLE FAMILY URBAN

MAJOR RIGHT-OF-WAY

FLOODPLAIN

(SFT) (MF) SINGLE FAMILY TOWNHOUSE/CLUSTER

8' TRAIL

(SFL) SINGLE FAMILY LIMITED

FIRE STATION

MASONRY WALL



15

22

17

18

19
20

21

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

66

67

68

70

71

72

16

30

73

69

(64' R.O.W.)

JEANNE A. THOMPSON
3.150 ACRES
(2000053933)

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, L.P.

107.928 AC.

(2004063370)

BLOCK H

BENBROOK RANCH

SECTION ONE

PHASE TWO

(Y/345)

(R
IG

H
T O

F W
A

Y
 W

ID
TH

 V
A

R
IE

S
)

BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT

(1455/296)

APPROX.

CENTERLINE OF

BRUSHY CREEK

APPROX.

CENTERLINE OF

BRUSHY CREEK

APPROX.

CENTERLINE OF

BRUSHY CREEK

ESTATES OF

NORTH CREEK RANCH

SECTION TWO

(V/293)

(50' R
.O

.W
.)

36

35

34

33

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

LEANDER I.S.D.

LOT 1, BLOCK D

HERITAGE GLEN SECTION ONE

(CC/369)

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

10

(6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

14

13
12

11
10

9

8

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

1

BLOCK C

HERITAGE GLEN SECTION ONE

(CC/369)

BLOCK A

(CC/369)

BLOCK K

(V/293)

BLOCK A

(V/293)

14

15

LOT 1A BLOCK B

BENBROOK RANCH

SEC. ONE PH. ONE

(W/295)

LOT 3 BLOCK H

BENBROOK RANCH

SEC. TWO PH. ONE

(CC/3)

LOT 3 BLOCK H

BENBROOK RANCH

SEC. TWO PH. ONE

(CC/3)

PORTION OF

164.466 AC.

(2004063368)

WATERSTONE MICHELLE, L.P.

PORTION OF 164.466 AC.

(2004063368)

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, L.P.

107.928 AC.

(2004063370)

JEANNE A. THOMPSON
3.150 ACRES
(2000053933)

HEB GROCERY CO.

78.978 ACRES

(2003003109)

HEB GROCERY CO.

78.978 ACRES

(2003003109)

BLOCK B

HERITAGE GLEN SECTION ONE

(CC/369)

(50' R
.O.W

.)

U
S

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 183

S
A

B
IN

A
S

 D
R

LEA3

/ /

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

/
/

/
/

X

X

/ / /

/ / /

20' W
ID

E
 S

.W
.B

.T.

E
S

M
T. (549/813)

20' W
ID

E
 S

.W
.B

.T. E
S

M
T.

(594/785)

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION OF

20' WIDE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

(1275/165)

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION OF

20' WIDE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

(1275/165)

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION OF

20' WIDE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

(1275/165)

PARCEL 9E
0.039 AC.

DRAINAGE ESMT.
(2005068805)

PARCEL 10E
0.541 AC.

DRAINAGE ESMT.
(2005068805)

15' UTIL. ESMT.
(200601423)

0.36 AC
EASEMENT

AREA

S

AP

CH

CH

CH

CH

AP

AP

AP

S

UN

ZWA

ZWA

P.O.C.

P.O.B.

WWMH
WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

T

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

T

T

V

V

V

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

MH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

WWMH

OU

OU

OU

P.O.B.

FEMA ZONE AE

SCALED FROM MAP

FEMA ZONE AESCALED FROM MAP

FEMA Z
ONE A

E

SCALE
D F

ROM M
AP

FEMA ZONE AE

SCALE
D FROM M

AP

FEM
A ZO

NE AE

SCALED FRO
M

 M
AP

SHADED ZONE X

FEMA ZONE AE
SCALED FROM MAP

SHADED ZONE X

FENCE IS

2.1' ON SUBJECT

FENCE IS

0.6' ON SUBJECT

FENCE IS

1.7' ON SUBJECT

FENCE IS

0.4' OFF

SUBJECT

8' X 8'

BOX CULVERTS

18" RCP

CONC.

WALK

CONC.

WALK

CONC.

HEADWALL

CURB &

GUTTER

CURB &

GUTTER

CURB &

GUTTER

STONE

COLUMN

UTILITY

VAULT

GATE

18" CMP

C
O

N
C

.

CONC.

HEADWALL

C
O

N
C

.

CONC.

HEADWALL

GUARDRAIL

ASPH. ROAD

TERMINATES

ON SUBJECT

ASPH. ROAD

TERMINATES

ON SUBJECT

HEADWALL

HEADWALL

HEADWALL

(3) 3'X2' BOX
CULVERTS

(3) 3'X2' BOX
CULVERTS

(3) 3'X2' BOX
CULVERTS

ROCK
GABIAN

ROCK
GABIAN

ASPH. ROAD

EXISTING 8"

WATER LINE AND

VALVE
EXISTING 8" WW

LINE HERITAGE

GLEN SECTION

ONE (TO BE

RELOCATED)

EXISTING WW

SERVICES (TO

BE REMOVED)

EXISTING WATER

QUALITY POND

12" PVC'S UNDER

BERM

12" PVC'S UNDER

BERM

12" PVC'S UNDER

BERM

ROCK GABION

ROCK GABION

EXISTING 8"

WATER LINE AND

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING 8"

WATER LINE AND

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING

OVERHEAD PEC

POWER LINE (TO

BE RELOCATED)

(TO BE
RELOCATED)

21"
WASTEWATER

LINE

21"
WASTEWATER

LINE

FEMA
FLOODPLAIN

MAP #
48491CO455E

FEMA
FLOODPLAIN

MAP #
48491CO455E

(S77°05'00"W 634.71')

(S77°06'00"W 1312.43')

(S77°09'00"W 837.97')

S75°04'10"W 603.40'

S75°04'31"W 1312.45'

S75°07'18"W 837.81'

S82°30'17"E 435.20'

S
21°01'11"E

 1329.18'

(S89°25'00"E 872.34')

(S89°39'00"E 440.74')

L1
L2

L3
L4

L5
L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11 L23

L24

L2
5

L2
6

L2
7

(S71°06'00"W 1225.27')

S69°09'11"W 369.12'

(N
14

°2
7'

00
"W

 1
71

3.
85

')

N
26

°5
8'

52
"E

 2
27

.4
9'

(N
29

°0
2'

00
"E

 2
27

.6
0'

)

N88°19'34"E 440.91'

N88°34'02"E 636.85'

(S
18°59'00"E

 1328.87')

N69°06'43"E 245.27'

N52°34'57"E
 241.82'

N63°51'43"E 260.61'

S73°28'22"W

59.85'

N21°07'13"W 186.87'

(N21°06'28"W 186.93')

N68°51'57"E 154.83'

(N68°53'32"E 154.78')

N
21

°0
6'

14
"W

 7
44

.1
5'

(N
21

°0
6'

35
"W

 7
44

.3
7'

)

S68°53'22"W 750.35'

(S68°53'11"W 750.34')

S
18

°2
4'

23
"E

 2
13

.3
9'

(S
18

°2
5'

46
"E

 2
13

.3
6'

)

C
1

C2

C3

S75°04'10"W

30.83'

S
21

°0
1'

11
"E

 1
47

8.
67

'

N88°34'02"E 234.28'

S26°33'24"E

1360.29'

N
16

°2
9'

54
"W

 1
00

9.
33

'

S74°30'40"W

146.22'

N
20°44'42"W

 453.14'

N
20°44'42"W

 747.56'

(N
20°44'42"W

)

S77°11'17"E 206.16'
(S77°11'25"E 205.87')

S76°33'22"E 999.84'
(S76°33'31"E 999.78')

S76°10'25"E 306.57'
(S76°10'34"E 306.57')

55.92'

N
19

°5
3'

11
"E

13
3.

80
'

S06°04'20"W
0.38'

146.24'

20.00'

L1

L2
L3

L4

L18
L19

L2
0

S
01

°4
5'

13
"W

28
4.

57
'

C1
C2

C3
C4

The reproduction, copying or other use of this drawing without the

written consent of SEC Planning, LLC is prohibited.

1.

Issue Date:

5.

4.

2.

3.

130078-SELA
Project No.

2013C

SEC Planning, LLC

Drawn By: MB

September 6, 2013

Issued:

Revisions:

1.

5.

4.

2.

3.

Reviewed By: MB

City Concept Submittal 09/6/13

Q:\130078-SELA\Cadfiles\PLANNING\

Submittals\Concept Plan

Submittal\Concept A 2013-08-15.dwg

City Concept Submittal 10/7/13

City Concept Submittal 10/24/13

City Concept Submittal 11/05/13

L
E
A

N
D

E
R

, 
T

E
X

A
S

P
A

R
K

L
A

N
D

 E
X

H
IB

IT

M
IC

H
E
L
L
E
 /

 T
Y

L
E
R

V
IL

L
E
 T

R
A

C
T

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 P

L
A

N
 -

 S
H

E
E
T

 2

VICINITY MAP

NEW HOPE RD.

B
A
G

D
A
D

 R
D

.

SOUTH SAN GABRIEL

R
EA

G
A

N
 B

LV
D

.

U
.S. 183

U
.S. 183A

FM 1431

S.H. 29

SAN GABRIEL PARKWAY

SITE

LEANDER
CITY OF

4201 W. Parmer Lane Bldg A Suite 220

Austin, TX 78727

T 512.246.7003

F 512.246.7703

www.secplanning.com

Email : info@secplanning.com

LAND PLANNING

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

COMMUNITY BRANDING

SEC Planning, LLC
Austin, Texas

SENTINEL/COTTER LEANDER, LLC
700 LAVACA STREET

SUITE 900
AUSTIN, TX 78701
T: 949-922-2512

OWNER: MICHELLE

WATERSTONE TYLERVILLE, LP
10500 AVERY CLUB DRIVE

SUITE 900
AUSTIN, TX 78717

OWNER: TYLERVILLE

PARKLAND NOTES:

ALL PROPOSED PARK IMPROVEMENTS WILL MEET CITY PARK & FACILITY EQUIPMENT STANDARDS AND U.S.
CONSUMER PRODUCTS SAFETY COMMISSION - PUBLICATION 32

PARK IMPROVEMENTS WILL INCLUDE A PLAYGROUND, RESTROOM FACILITY, TRAILS, PICNIC AREAS
AND OPEN PLAY

PARKLAND CALCULATIONS

OPTION TWO:

689 / 100 x 3.50 = 24.12 AC.
(# OF DWELLING UNITS) (PROPOSED PUBLIC PARK ACREAGE OR FEE IN LIEU)

689 X $350 = $241,150
(# OF DWELLING UNITS) (VALUE OF PROPOSED PARK IMPROVEMENTS)

FLOODPLAIN
OPEN SPACE / PARKS

TRAIL

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

16.4
14.9

5,700

31.3TOTAL ACRES

ACRES
ACRES
L.F.

LEGEND



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page9 of 20 

Exhibit 2 
 

Architectural Standards Tables 

 
 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page10 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page11 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page12 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page13 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page14 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page15 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page16 of 20 

 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page17 of 20 

 
 

 
  



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page18 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page19 of 20 

 

 



 

Oak Creek - Planned Unit Development  Page20 of 20 

 

 
 
 







AGENDA ITEM # 19 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 13-Z-028:  Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of several tracts of land located at 2680 CR 268, 
17851 Ronald W. Reagan, generally located north of Hero Way, 
West of Ronald Reagan Blvd. & south of San Gabriel; Legal 
Description AW0125 Chambers, T. Sur. 197.55 acres more or less; 
WCAD Parcels #R098020, R031606, R473799, R473798, 
R473797, R333713, R031617, R031607. Currently, the property is 
zoned GC-3-C (General Commercial), Interim SFS-2-B (Single-
Family Suburban) and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural). 
The property is proposed to be zoned PUD (Planned Unit 
Development), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Blake J. Magee on behalf of Palmera Ridge 

Development, Inc. and MP52, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of staff recommendations 
with the correction to the staff recommendation to include the 
SFL-2-A at the March 27, 2014. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Proposed PUD 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6.   Ordinance 
 7.   Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission March 27, 2014 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/28/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 13-Z-028 
PALMERA RIDGE PUD 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Palmer Ridge Development, Inc. and MP52, LLC 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 GC-3-C (General Commercial).   
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property includes 2680 CR 268 and 17851 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd, 

and is generally located north of Hero Way, West of Ronald W. Reagan 
Blvd. & south of San Gabriel.  The property is approximately 197.55 acres 
in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH OCL Undeveloped Properties in the ETJ 

EAST SFR-2-B 
Interim SFS-2-B 

Single-Family Neighborhood under construction 
Established Single-Family Homes  

SOUTH OCL Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 

WEST OCL Established Single-Family Homes & Undeveloped Properties 
        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  This integrated project will 
include a blend of single-family, multi-family, and commercial development.  The intent of 
this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with 
adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the 
region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a mixed residential community that includes multi-family and commercial 
development located along Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  The majority of this property is currently 
subject to a voluntary annexation.  This process will run concurrently with the rezoning request.  
The proposal includes residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over 
seventy (70’) feet wide.  The applicant has incorporated the mixture of residential districts in a 
well integrated neighborhood plan providing a variety of lot sizes within the same neighborhood.    
 
The PUD proposal includes two categories of land use:  Mixed Use and Single Family.  The 
Mixed Use category permits the development of uses listed in the MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and 
GC-3-C (General Commercial) zoning districts.  The development agreement approved by the 
City Council limits the size of the mixed use area to fifteen acres, but not less than eleven acres. 
 
The proposed MF-2-B district would permit a density of 18 units per acre and require that 35% 
of the units have garages.  The Type B architectural component requires that 85% of the first 
story walls are masonry and the 50% of the overall structure is masonry.  The proposed GC-3-C 
is consistent with the current commercial zoning on the property.  The proposed Type 3 site 



Attachment # 1                 

 

component associated with the GC use component permits the use of the outdoor site area for 
outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory buildings.   Permitted 
outdoor uses include: 
 Outdoor Display (limited 30% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Storage (limited 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors  
 Drive-Through Lanes (also permitted in Type 2) 

The Type C architectural component requires that 60% of the street facing walls are masonry and 
the 35% of the overall structure is masonry. 
 
The table below identifies the proposed residential zoning districts,  lot sizes, and allowed 
percent for the residential portion of this project.  The primary difference between the proposed 
lot size is the SFL-2-A district.  The ordinance currently requires the lot width to be 41 feet and 
the minimum lot size to be 4100 square feet.  The approved development agreement limits the 
overall density of the residential portion of this project to 600 units. 
 

Use Lot 
Width 

Minimum 
Lot Area 

Living 
Area SF Total Lots Allowed 

Percent 
SINGLE-FAMILY 
Single-Family Limited (SFL-2-A) 40’ 3500* 1000 46 8% max 
Single-Family Compact (SFC-2-A) 50’ 5500 1100 229 38% max 
Single-Family Urban (SFU-2-A) 60’ 7200 1200 200 33% min 
Single Family Suburban (SFS-2-A) 70’ 9000 1500 125 21% min 

* Proposed SFL-2-A maybe developed under a site plan, in which case lot area would be 
building area. 

 
Proposed Variations from the Composite Zoning Ordinance and/or Subdivision Ordinance: 

1. Development of a single tier of lots adjacent to the collector roads.  Currently, the 
Subdivision Ordinance requires that all residential blocks are designed to accommodate 
two tiers of lots. 

2. Removal of the required vehicular connection to the west. 
3. Lots that are developed with the SFL use component will not be required to have frontage 

on a street with ROW of 56 feet or greater and a pavements width of 36 feet  or greater 
unless access to garages are from an alley. 

 
Additional Standards Not Required by the Composite Zoning Ordinance: 

1. Construction of a six (6’) foot decorative wall along the collector streets of  the project. 
2. Construction of a native landscaping in the wet pond at the entry of the subdivision off of 

Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. 
3. Use of the Type A architectural component on the residential portion of the project.  All 

street facing sides of the homes backing up to or siding on the collector roads will be 
100% masonry. 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD with the following conditions: 

1. The proposed base zoning district for the mixed use category is changes from the GC-3-C 
to GC-3-B.   

2. The street connection to the west is provided. 
3. All lots that are proposed to front on the street to the west of the SFL-2-A lot (currently 

called Blue Lagoon on the Concept Plan) shall have garage access from a rear alley. 
 

The proposed PUD promotes more flexibility with the location of the single-family districts and 
incorporates a mixture of multi-family and commercial uses along Ronald W. Reagan Blvd.  
This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate a variety of land uses while 
maintaining high form standards.  The requested PUD meets the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

HERO WAY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

BA
KE

R 
LN

CR 264

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274MI
KE

S W
AY

AIRPORT DR

JENNIFER LN

CH
RIS

TO
PH

ER
 LN

WINDING OAK TRL

HAWKINS DR

CREEKVIEW CIR

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 800
Feet

ZONING CASE 13-Z-028
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Palmera Ridge PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



HERO WAY RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 264

CR 274

AIRPORT DR

WINDING OAK TRL

CREEKVIEW CIR

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 13-Z-028 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Palmera Ridge PUD



0 75 150

Scale: 1”= 150’

PHARIS DESIGN
PLANNING   LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Exhibit B:  Palmera Ridge Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan
March 26, 2014

Hanna & Magee, L.P.

SFL lot

Future Access Point to 
East San Gabriel Parkway

Mixed Use
  3.61 Ac

Wet
Pond

R
O

N
A

L
D

  
 R

E
A

G
A

N
  
 B

L
V

D
  
(
R

O
W

  
 V

A
R

I E
S

)

A i rpo r t D r i ve

Mixed Use
  8.26 Ac

Amenities 
Center + Pool

Linear 
Park

NOTES:
1.  The base zoning district for the project shall be all Zoning 
Categories listed to the left in Table A and Table B (gathered 
from the City of Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance).  The 
standards of the Composite Zoning Ordinance will apply 
unless otherwise described in the following notes;

2.  PUD area = 197.55 acres

3.  Lot width distribution shall be in accordance with Table B, 
this sheet.

4.  This will be a single family residential, commercial, and 
multi-family development.

5.  Greenbelts and Parks will be provided in accordance with 
the approved concept plan.

6.  Parkland dedication for the development was satisfied 
through a Development Agreement between Palmera Ridge 
Development, Inc. and the City of Leander, Texas.

7.  The development will contain a minimum of 20 acres 
parkland, amenity center, and natural open space.

8.  A 6’ decorative rock wall will be built along either side of all 
collector streets within a 25’ landscaped parkway.

9.  Over 1 mile of pedestrian trails will be built within the 
development.

10.  A native landscaped wet pond will be constructed at the 
main entry off of Ronald Reagan Blvd.

11.  All single family homes will be constructed to “Type A” 
Architectural Standards as defined by the City of Leander.

12.  No homes will front on the collector road and all street 
facing sides of the homes backing or siding on the collector 
roads will be 100% masonry.

13.  A Single Tier of lots will be allowed along all collector 
streets identified on the PUD Land Use Plan.

14.  No Vehicular connection is required to be provided along 
the western property boundary to any adjacent bordering 
parcel of land.

15.  The development agreement between the City of Leander 
and Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. regarding the 
Development  applies to this PUD.

16.  Lots that are developed as SFL and have frontage on a 
street are not required to have a ROW of 56’ or greater and 
pavement width of 36’ or greater.  A standard ROW of 50’ with 
a pavement width of 25’ will be acceptable for frontage on SFL 
lots.

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Linear 
Park

Greenbelt
Natural Area

Pocket
Park

Trail

Collector Street

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

C
ollector Street

Mid Block
Connection

Future San Gabrie
l P

arkway

Mid Block
Connection

This plan is conceptual.  The street layout and 
standards have not been reviewed by staff.  The 
subdivision ordinance and Transportation Criteria 
Manual regulations apply unless otherwise noted in 
the development agreement or PUD document.

:  Mixed Use :  Single Family

Park

Legend:

TRAIL







Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING SEVERAL PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM GC-3-C (GENERAL COMMERCIAL), INTERIMS SFS-2-B 
(SINGLE-FAMILY SUBURBAN), AND INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-
FAMILY RURAL) PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 197.55 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, generally 
located on the north of Hero Way, west of Ronald W. Reagan Blvd, and south of San Gabriel 
Pkwy; legally described as Part of Lot 7, Kittie Hill Acres and 195.649 acres more or less out of the 
T. Chambers Survey, more particularly described in Document Numbers 2013115345 and 
2014001362, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification numbers R098020, R031606, R473799, R473798, R473797, R333713, R031617, 
and R031607.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from GC-3-C (General Commercial), Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family 
Suburban) and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
known as the Palmera Ridge PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in accordance 
with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibit “B”, which are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the extent not 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall control.   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

HERO WAY

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 264

CR 274

AIRPO
RT D

R

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

WINDING OAK TRL

CREEKVIEW CIR

HA
W

KI
NS

 D
R

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
13-Z-028
Palmera Ridge PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



0 75 150

Scale: 1”= 150’

PHARIS DESIGN
PLANNING   LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Exhibit B:  Palmera Ridge Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan
March 26, 2014

Hanna & Magee, L.P.

SFL lot

Future Access Point to 
East San Gabriel Parkway

Mixed Use
  3.61 Ac

Wet
Pond

R
O

N
A

L
D

  
 R

E
A

G
A

N
  
 B

L
V

D
  
(
R

O
W

  
 V

A
R

I E
S

)

A i rpo r t D r i ve

Mixed Use
  8.26 Ac

Amenities 
Center + Pool

Linear 
Park

NOTES:
1.  The base zoning district for the project shall be all Zoning 
Categories listed to the left in Table A and Table B (gathered 
from the City of Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance).  The 
standards of the Composite Zoning Ordinance will apply 
unless otherwise described in the following notes;

2.  PUD area = 197.55 acres

3.  Lot width distribution shall be in accordance with Table B, 
this sheet.

4.  This will be a single family residential, commercial, and 
multi-family development.

5.  Greenbelts and Parks will be provided in accordance with 
the approved concept plan.

6.  Parkland dedication for the development was satisfied 
through a Development Agreement between Palmera Ridge 
Development, Inc. and the City of Leander, Texas.

7.  The development will contain a minimum of 20 acres 
parkland, amenity center, and natural open space.

8.  A 6’ decorative rock wall will be built along either side of all 
collector streets within a 25’ landscaped parkway.

9.  Over 1 mile of pedestrian trails will be built within the 
development.

10.  A native landscaped wet pond will be constructed at the 
main entry off of Ronald Reagan Blvd.

11.  All single family homes will be constructed to “Type A” 
Architectural Standards as defined by the City of Leander.

12.  No homes will front on the collector road and all street 
facing sides of the homes backing or siding on the collector 
roads will be 100% masonry.

13.  A Single Tier of lots will be allowed along all collector 
streets identified on the PUD Land Use Plan.

14.  No Vehicular connection is required to be provided along 
the western property boundary to any adjacent bordering 
parcel of land.

15.  The development agreement between the City of Leander 
and Palmera Ridge Development, Inc. regarding the 
Development  applies to this PUD.

16.  Lots that are developed as SFL and have frontage on a 
street are not required to have a ROW of 56’ or greater and 
pavement width of 36’ or greater.  A standard ROW of 50’ with 
a pavement width of 25’ will be acceptable for frontage on SFL 
lots.

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

Linear 
Park

Greenbelt
Natural Area

Pocket
Park

Trail

Collector Street

Detention
Pond

Detention
Pond

C
ollector Street

Mid Block
Connection

Future San Gabrie
l P

arkway

Mid Block
Connection

This plan is conceptual.  The street layout and 
standards have not been reviewed by staff.  The 
subdivision ordinance and Transportation Criteria 
Manual regulations apply unless otherwise noted in 
the development agreement or PUD document.

:  Mixed Use :  Single Family

Park

Legend:

TRAIL





AGENDA ITEM # 20 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #14-Z-005: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a tract of land located at 1001 Horizon Park 
Blvd; 5.69 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel #R036572. Currently, 
the property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban / 
Manufactured Home). The property is proposed to be zoned TF-2-
B (Two-Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Michael and Theresa Kopecky on behalf of Willie and 

Sue A. Kopecky.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the March 
27, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.  Planning Analysis 
 2.  Current Zoning Map  
 3.  Aerial Map 
 4.  Letter of Intent 
 5.   Ordinance 
 6.   Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission March 27, 2014 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/28/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-005 

Texas Village 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Willie and Sue A. Kopecky. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd and is approximately 5.77 

acres in size.   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

EAST SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Homes: Oak Ridge Sec. 2 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST HC-4-D Developed Commercial Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
TF – TWO-FAMILY:   

Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family/Manufactured Home) district, and 
the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district.  Immediately 
north of this property is a SFU/MH-2-B district with a developed single family home, and the 
property to the east is zoned as SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) district and is the developed 
Oak Ridge Section 2 residential subdivision. The southern property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B 
(Single Family Urban / Manufactured Home), and is developed with a single family home. The 
property to the west is zoned HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and is a developed commercial 
property. 
 
The intent of the TF use component is to serve as a buffer between larger lot subdivisions and 
more intensive land uses. The goal is to create more variety in housing, while seeking to avoid 
creating a zoning district including TF use component larger than 10 acres.  Additionally, access 
to TF-2-B zoned property should be provided by a street with a ROW dedication of 56 feet or 
greater, and 36 six feet of pavement. The intent statement goes on to note that the TF-2-B district 
should be within 600 feet of park or other recreation open space.  The TF use component 
requires a minimum of one enclosed garage parking space and two additional off street parking 
spaces. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets several of the intent statements for the TF-2-B district.  It would 
provide a buffer between existing single family developments to the east and buffer more 
intensive commercial developments immediately to the west.  The property is approximately five 
and three quarter acres, and avoids forming a 10 acre contiguous tract of TF-2-B zoning.  
Additionally, staff anticipates at the time of development that the applicant’s request to the TF-2-



Attachment # 1                 

 

B district will meet the remaining intent statements regarding the TF-2-B project be located on a 
street with 36 feet of pavement, and located within 600 feet of a park or open recreation space.  
The intent statement grants an exception to the 36 feet of pavement requirement, if the minimum 
lot widths are set at 100 feet or if garage access is from an alley. The Staff recommends approval 
of this request, as the proposed request does satisfy the majority of the intent statements outlined 
in the composite zoning ordinance.   
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
PLANNING ANALYSIS  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-005 

Texas Village 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Willie and Sue A. Kopecky. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is at 1001 Horizon Park Blvd and is approximately 5.77 

acres in size.   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

EAST SFU-2-B Developed Single Family Homes: Oak Ridge Sec. 2 

SOUTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST HC-4-D Developed Commercial Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
TF – TWO-FAMILY:   

Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family/Manufactured Home) district, and 
the applicant is requesting to rezone the property to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district.  Immediately 
north of this property is a SFU/MH-2-B district with a developed single family home, and the 
property to the east is zoned as SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) district and is the developed 
Oak Ridge Section 2 residential subdivision. The southern property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B 
(Single Family Urban / Manufactured Home), and is developed with a single family home. The 
property to the west is zoned HC-4-D (Heavy Commercial) and is a developed commercial 
property. 
 
The intent of the TF use component is to serve as a buffer between larger lot subdivisions and 
more intensive land uses. The goal is to create more variety in housing, while seeking to avoid 
creating a zoning district including TF use component larger than 10 acres.  Additionally, access 
to TF-2-B zoned property should be provided by a street with a ROW dedication of 56 feet or 
greater, and 36 six feet of pavement. The intent statement goes on to note that the TF-2-B district 
should be within 600 feet of park or other recreation open space.  The TF use component 
requires a minimum of one enclosed garage parking space and two additional off street parking 
spaces. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets several of the intent statements for the TF-2-B district.  It would 
provide a buffer between existing single family developments to the east and buffer more 
intensive commercial developments immediately to the west.  The property is approximately five 
and three quarter acres, and avoids forming a 10 acre contiguous tract of TF-2-B zoning.  
Additionally, staff anticipates at the time of development that the applicant’s request to the TF-2-



Attachment # 1                 

 

B district will meet the remaining intent statements regarding the TF-2-B project be located on a 
street with 36 feet of pavement, and located within 600 feet of a park or open recreation space.  
The intent statement grants an exception to the 36 feet of pavement requirement, if the minimum 
lot widths are set at 100 feet or if garage access is from an alley. The Staff recommends approval 
of this request, as the proposed request does satisfy the majority of the intent statements outlined 
in the composite zoning ordinance.   
 



ATKIN ADDITION

LEANDER CROSSING

LEANDER CROSSING

OVERLOOK ESTATES

RIDGEWOODNORTH

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

ALLENREEDACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LEANDER
MS

LEANDERHEIGHTS,SEC 1

5D

5D

4C

4C

4C

4C

4C

4C

S U
S 

18
3

LE
AN

DE
R 

DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

HILLTOP DR

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

HAZELWOOD ST

MEADOW VIEW DR

RIDGE VIEW DR

E SONNY DR

SCENIC PATH

TA
NG

LE
W

OO
D 

DR

THRUSH DR

SPRING BROOK LN

WO
OD

VIE
W 

DR

WI
LL

OW
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

MOUNTAIN RIDGE DR

OVERLOOK BND

SHEILA DR

SONNY DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-005
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Texas Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

City Limits
Subject Property
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation

Municipal Dr



OVERLOOK ESTATES

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

ALLENREEDACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

LE
AN

DE
R 

DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

HAZELWOOD ST

SCENIC PATH

TA
NG

LE
WO

OD
 D

R

HILLTOP DR

THRUSH DR

OVERLOOK BND

MEADOW VIEW DR

RIDGE VIEW DR

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N B

LV
D

SPRING BROOK LN

E SONNY DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-005 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Texas Village

S WEST DR



msiwek
Typewritten Text

msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING ONE PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU/MH-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME) TO 
TF-2-B (TWO-FAMILY); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 5.69 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 
commonly referred to as 1001 Horizon Park Blvd, Leander, Texas; legally described as Lots 29 
and 30, Block B, Leander Heights, Section 3, more particularly described in Document Number 
2005055146 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification number R036572.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU/MH-2-B (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) to TF-2-B 
(Two-Family).   
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



OVERLOOK ESTATES

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

OAKRIDGE,SEC2

OAKRIDGE,SEC1

ALLENREEDACRES

LEANDERHEIGHTS, SEC 3

5D

LE
AN

DE
R 

DR

HO
RI

ZO
N 

PA
RK

 B
LV

D

HAZELWOOD ST

HILLTOP DR

SCENIC PATH

TA
NG

LE
W

OO
D 

DR

THRUSH DR

OVERLOOK BND

MEADOW VIEW DR

LA
UR

EL
 G

LE
N 

BL
VD

SPRING BROOK LN

RIDGE VIEW DR

E SONNY DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-005
Texas Village
1001 Horizon Park Blvd

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation







AGENDA ITEM # 21 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 13-Z-025:  Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a tract of land located on the northwest corner 
of Osage Drive and Highland Trail; 0.94 acres more or less out of 
the AW0896–Morris, J Survey; WCAD Parcels #R484296. 
Currently, the property is zoned SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban). 
The property is proposed to be zoned PUD (Planned Unit 
Development), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Samuel Kiger, P.E. on behalf of Lookout Development 

Group LP.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

motioned to approve the request with staff recommendations and 
the motion failed with a five to two vote at the March 27, 2014 
meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Proposed PUD 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6.   Ordinance 
 7.   Letters from Neighboring Property Owners 
 8.   Minutes - Planning & Zoning Commission March 27, 2014 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/28/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 13-Z-025 

HIGHLANDS PUD 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Lookout Development Group LP. 
 
Current Zoning: SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located on the northwest corner of Osage Drive and 

Highland Trail and is approximately 0.94 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Winkley Elementary School 

EAST LC-2-B Undeveloped Land Zoned for Local Commercial 

SOUTH SFU-2-B Established Single-Family Homes (Highlands Neighborhood) 

WEST SFU-2-B Established Single-Family Homes (Highlands Neighborhood) 
        

 
  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits local office use.  In addition, the PUD will prohibit uses, limit 
hours of operation, determine access and parking locations, increase the landscaping 
requirements, and establish the architectural standards.  The intent of this zoning district is to 
cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region.  
 

LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   
Features:  Office, assisted living, day care. Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-

Thurs., 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 
Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 

located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 1:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 5% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; 150% of 

standard landscaping; pedestrian scale signage and lighting; scale of buildings limited; mansion 
style multi-family; at least eighty-five percent (85%) of multi-family units are required to have 
at least one enclosed garage parking space; alley access to SFL and SFT; accessory dwellings 
for SFT and SFE. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 1 site component is intended to be utilized typically for non-residential or multi-family 

developments that have frontage on a local residential street or residential collector street and are 
bounded by single-family development on at least one side.  This component is also intended to be 
utilized for single-family and two-family residential lots backing up to or siding to a major 
thoroughfare. 

(2)  This component ensures that development will not have site intensive uses or large buildings 
and will ensure that development is designed to a form and scale that is compatible with 
residential neighborhoods. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE A:   
Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   



Attachment # 1                 

 

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Establish high standards for development. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in order to allow for 
the development of a small professional office or a medical office at this location.  The base 
zoning district for the PUD is LO-1-A (Local Office).  The Local Office use component allows 
for small scale, limited impact office uses located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  This 
component is intended to provide a land use transition from more intense commercial districts or 
arterial streets to residential development.   
 
In addition, the Type 1 site component is intended for projects adjacent to residential and ensures 
that development will not have site intensive uses or large buildings.  The form and scale must be 
designed so that it is compatible with a residential neighborhood.  This site component requires a 
minimum of 150% of the standard landscape requirements for area and plant materials and that 
the detention/water quality ponds use earthen berms.  The Type 1 site component prohibits the 
following uses: 
 Outdoor Display and Storage 
 Outdoor Entertainment Venues 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors 
 Drive-Through Lanes  

 
The Type A architectural component requires at least eight-five (85%) of the exterior surface 
area walls are masonry and that there are a minimum of five design features.  This component is 
intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility between non-residential 
and residential uses. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

In addition, the applicant is proposing the following additional restrictions: 
 Business hours shall be no earlier than 8:00 a.m. and no later than 6:00 p.m.   
 Access to the parking lot will not be allowed from Highland Trail, but will be allowed 

through a joint driveway from the mail kiosk site connecting to Osage Drive.  The 
parking will be located behind the structure as shown in the attached PUD Plan.   

 The architecture of the building shall be complementary to the single-family 
neighborhood by having a pitched roof and building massing as depicted in the attached 
PUD Plan. 

 The landscaping and landscape area shall be increased by 50% of the current 
requirements.   
 

The following uses shall be prohibited: 
 Bar, nightclub or private club;  
 Entertainment venues including bowling alleys, golf practice ranges, miniature golf 

establishments, theaters, amusement parks, arcades, arenas, stadiums, gymnasiums, skating 
rinks, commercial sports venues, indoor shooting range; 

 Sexually oriented businesses 
 Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop 
 Animal hospital, veterinarian, animal boarding including a crematory associated with such use 

on site, or a crematory associated with a cemetery, as long as the crematory stack is located at 
least two hundred feet (200’) from a restaurant, or associated parking, or a residential zoning 
district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses).  Any commercial enterprise 
which includes an outdoor animal yard or any other commercial un-soundproofed animal area 
containing five or more animals is required to be at least two hundred feet (200’) from any 
residential district (unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses) and is required to be 
combined with a Type 3, 4 or 5 site component.  

 (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding academies 
and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of agricultural livestock and 
exotic hoof stock 

 Any uses permitted in the HC (Heavy Commercial) use component 
 Bingo Parlor 
 Pawn Shop 
 Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor  
 RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage 
 Transportation related facilities including commercial parking lots, passenger terminals, taxi 

cab stations and mass transit terminals 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The LO use component is intended to 
provide a land use transition from more intense commercial districts or arterial streets to 
residential development.  In addition, the proposed Type 1 site component restricts the size of the 
buildings and ensures that development is designed to a form and scale that is compatible with 
residential neighborhoods.  The requested PUD meets the intent statements of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 



HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

3B

2A

HIGHLAND TRL

OSAGE DR

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

POW WOW

ALAMO BOUND

RAINDANCE

QUICK FORT

SUN MOUNTAIN
THUNDER HORSE

GR
AP

EV
IN

E 
CA

NY
ON

 TR
L

RUSTY SPUR

BUFFALO SPEEDWAY

RU
NN

ING
 W

YL
D

MISTY RIDGE

BUFFALO THUNDER

WESTERN JUSTICE

CO
ST

A A
ZU

L C
V

SKY CORRAL RD

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 13-Z-025
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Highland Trails PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
LI
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

HIGHLAND TRL

OSAGE DR

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

POW WOW

RAINDANCE

ALAMO BOUND

QUICK FORT

SUN MOUNTAIN
THUNDER HORSE

GR
AP

EV
IN

E C
AN

YO
N 

TR
L

MISTY RIDGE

RUNNING WYLD

RUSTY SPUR

CO
ST

A A
ZU

L C
V

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 13-Z-025 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Highland Trails PUD






IN THE CITY OF LEANDER, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS






Date: March 26, 2014



 
 






 Bar, nightclub or private club;

 Entertainment venues including bowling alleys, golf practice ranges, miniature golf 

establishments, theaters, amusement parks, arcades, arenas, stadiums, 

gymnasiums, skating rinks, commercial sports venues, indoor shooting r ange;

 Sexually oriented businesses;

 Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop;

 Animal hospital, veterinarian, animal boarding including a crematory associated with 

such use on site, or a crematory associated with a cemetery, as long as the 

crematory stack is located at least two hundred feet (200’) from a restaurant, or 

associated parking, or a residential zoning district (unless such district is utilized for 

non-residential uses).  Any commercial enterprise which includes an out door animal 

yard or any other commercial un -soundproofed animal area containing five or more 

animals is required to be at least two hundred feet (200’) from any residential district 

(unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses) and is require d to be 

combined with a Type 3, 4 or 5 site component; 

 (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 

academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 

agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock;

 Any uses permitted in the LI (Light Industrial) use component;

 Bingo Parlor;

 Pawn Shop;

 Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor; 

 RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage;

 Transportation related facilities including commercial parkin g lots, passenger 

terminals, taxi cab stations and mass transit terminals

1. Layout is Conceptual.

2. Business hours shall be no earlier than 8am and no later than 6pm.

    Lighting shall be shielded  to ensure no light spillage on surrounding property.

3. No Parcel shall be used for any of the following  uses, directly or indirectly:

4. No access to the parking lot will be allowed from Highland Trail. Access to the

    parking lot will be allowed only from Osage Drive through a joint driveway from the

    mail kiosk site.

5. Parking will be located behind the structure.

6. The architecture of the building shall be complementary to the single-family

    neighborhood and the structure shall have a pitched roof.

7. The landscaping and the landscape area shall be increased by 50% of the

    current requirement per Type 1 Site Component regulations for a total of

    150% of the requirement.

8. The base zoning district for this PUD shall be LO-1-A. PUD will comply with all

    architectural, landscape and elevation requirements for City of Leander Zoning

    Ordinance LO-1-A.





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING ONE PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU-2-B (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 0.94 acres, more or less, located in 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and “B”, 
generally located on the northwest corner of Highland Trail and Osage Drive; legally described as 
0.94 acres more or less out of the J. W. Morris Survey, more particularly described in Document 
Number 2007006054, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax 
identification number R484296.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) known as the Highland Trail PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in 
accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibit “C”, which are hereby 
adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to the 
extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this Ordinance shall 
control.   
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of April, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



 

1805 Ouida Dr., Austin, Texas 78728 ● Firm # 10032000  
Phone (512)267-7430 ● Fax (512)836-8385 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

LOOKOUT PARTNERS 
HIGHLANDS 1-4, LOT 1  
0.940 ACRES 
 
DESCRIPTION OF 0.940 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, OUT OF 
THE J. W. MORRIS SURVEY NO. 530, ABS 896, BEING A PORTION OF A 168.821 ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED OF RECORD TO LOOKOUT DEVELOPMENT GROUP, L.P. IN 
DOCUMENT NO. 2007006054, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; 
SAID 0.940 ACRE TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2” iron rod found in the curving westerly line of Highland Trail (60’ R.O.W.) of a curve 
to the right at the most easterly or northeast corner of LISD Elementary School No. 17, a subdivision of 
record in Cabinet CC, Slides 48-50, Plat Records of Williamson County, Texas, for the most northerly corner 
of the herein described tract; 
 
THENCE with the westerly line of said Highland Trail, the following three (3) courses: 
 

1. Along said curve to the right, an arc length of 77.78 feet, with a radius of 268.00 feet, and a chord 
which bears S29°01'52”E, a distance of 77.51 feet to a1/2” iron rod found at the end of said curve; 
 

2. S20°56'36"E, a distance of 186.37 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found at the point of curvature of a curve 
return to the right;  

 
3. Along said curve return to the right, an arc length of 30.98 feet, with a radius of 20.00 feet, and a 

chord which bears S24°01'46”W, a distance of 27.97 feet to a1/2” iron rod found at the end of said 
curve in the northerly line of Osage Drive (120’ R.O.W.); 

 
THENCE with the northerly line of said Osage Drive, the following two (2) courses: 
 

1. S68°33'13"W, a distance of 55.68 feet to a 1/2” iron rod found at the point of curvature of a curve to 
the left; 

 
2. Along said curve to the left, an arc length of 117.90 feet, with a radius of 785.00 feet, and a chord 

which bears S62°57'43”W, a distance of 117.79 feet to an iron rod with G&R Cap set, for the most 
southerly corner of the herein described tract; 

 
THENCE N31°20'26”W, over and across said 168.21 acre tract, a distance of 112.78 feet to an iron rod with 
G&R Cap set in the southeasterly line of said LISD Elementary School No. 17, for the most westerly corner 
of the herein described tract 
 
THENCE N26°34'54”E, with the southeasterly line of said LISD Elementary School No. 17, a distance of 
273.90 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing an area of 0.940 acres of land, more or less. 
 
___________________________________________ 
Phillip L. McLaughlin   04-03-13 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 5300 
 
Bearings are based on the Texas Coordinate System, NAD 83, Central Zone. 
G&R Surveying Project No. 11292     Attachments: None 

pmclaughlin
PHIL SIGNATURE

pmclaughlin
PHIL SEAL

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 2

HIGHLANDS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 1

WINKLEY
ES

FAIRWAYS
AT CRYSTAL FALLSSEC 2

BLUFFS
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 1

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH IV3A

3B

2A

2A

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

HIGHLAND TRL

POW WOW

QUICK FORT

OSAGE DR

SILVER SPUR LN

GR
AN

ITE
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

ALAMO BOUND

RAINDANCE

SUN MOUNTAIN

LONG BOW DR

MISTY RIDGE

RUSTY SPUR

BUFFALO THUNDER

TRIBAL WAY

WIGWAM

CROSS DRAW

THUNDER HORSE

LEADERS LN

WESTERN JUSTICE
GR

AP
EV

IN
E 

CA
NY

ON
 TR

L

SIGNATURE LN
ST

AR
R 

PA
SS

RUNNING WYLD

TALL CHIEF

WOLF DANCER
SKY CORRAL RD

CO
ST

A A
ZU

L C
V

SILVER SPUR CV

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E 
BL

VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT B
Zoning Case
13-Z-025
Highland Trail PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation






IN THE CITY OF LEANDER, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS






Date: March 26, 2014



 
 






 Bar, nightclub or private club;

 Entertainment venues including bowling alleys, golf practice ranges, miniature golf 

establishments, theaters, amusement parks, arcades, arenas, stadiums, 

gymnasiums, skating rinks, commercial sports venues, indoor shooting r ange;

 Sexually oriented businesses;

 Vehicle and major equipment sales, rental or leasing, repair, body shop;

 Animal hospital, veterinarian, animal boarding including a crematory associated with 

such use on site, or a crematory associated with a cemetery, as long as the 

crematory stack is located at least two hundred feet (200’) from a restaurant, or 

associated parking, or a residential zoning district (unless such district is utilized for 

non-residential uses).  Any commercial enterprise which includes an out door animal 

yard or any other commercial un -soundproofed animal area containing five or more 

animals is required to be at least two hundred feet (200’) from any residential district 

(unless such district is utilized for non-residential uses) and is require d to be 

combined with a Type 3, 4 or 5 site component; 

 (For lots or tracts three or more acres in size) ranches, dairy farms, stables, riding 

academies and roping arenas; including the feeding, raising and breeding of 

agricultural livestock and exotic hoof stock;

 Any uses permitted in the LI (Light Industrial) use component;

 Bingo Parlor;

 Pawn Shop;

 Tattoo and/or Body Piercing Parlor; 

 RV, trailer, commercial motor vehicle and boat outdoor storage;

 Transportation related facilities including commercial parkin g lots, passenger 

terminals, taxi cab stations and mass transit terminals

1. Layout is Conceptual.

2. Business hours shall be no earlier than 8am and no later than 6pm.

    Lighting shall be shielded  to ensure no light spillage on surrounding property.

3. No Parcel shall be used for any of the following  uses, directly or indirectly:

4. No access to the parking lot will be allowed from Highland Trail. Access to the

    parking lot will be allowed only from Osage Drive through a joint driveway from the

    mail kiosk site.

5. Parking will be located behind the structure.

6. The architecture of the building shall be complementary to the single-family

    neighborhood and the structure shall have a pitched roof.

7. The landscaping and the landscape area shall be increased by 50% of the

    current requirement per Type 1 Site Component regulations for a total of

    150% of the requirement.

8. The base zoning district for this PUD shall be LO-1-A. PUD will comply with all

    architectural, landscape and elevation requirements for City of Leander Zoning

    Ordinance LO-1-A.





rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7













AGENDA ITEM # 22 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 03, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Consideration and action on a letter agreement between the City of 

Leander and BLG Hawkes, LLC for 93.4 acres, more or less, 
generally located approximately 3,500 feet to the west of the 
intersection of North Bagdad Road and Old 2243 West on the 
north side of Old 2243 West. Encompassing the property known as 
the Hawkes Landing Subdivision within the city limits of the City 
of Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: The letter agreement with BLG Hawkes, LLC includes parameters 

for the storage of fill material on their property during subdivision 
construction.  Currently, the Subdivision Ordinance does not 
permit the storage of the material unless the property where the 
material is stored is part of an active phase of development.  The 
developer wishes to store the material in one location and use the 
material throughout all phases of the development of the project.  
Staff is currently preparing an amendment to the Subdivision 
Ordinance to present to City Council that would allow for the 
storage of fill material with certain terms and conditions.  
 

Origination: Applicant/Agent:  James Dorney on behalf of BLG Hawkes, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the letter agreement.   
 
Attachments: 1.  Hawkes Landing Letter Agreement 
 2.  Exhibit A – Property Description 
 3.  Exhibit B – Proposed Location of Fill Material Storage 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director  03/26/2014 



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
April 03, 2014 
 
 
 
 
James Dorney 
BLG Hawkes, LLC 
8601 Ranch Road 2222 
Austin, Texas 78730 
 
 
 RE:  Storage of Fill Material for the Hawkes Landing Subdivision 
 
 
Dear Mr. Dorney: 
 
 This letter agreement (the “Agreement’) sets forth the agreement and understanding between the City 
of Leander (the “City”) and BLG Hawkes, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (the “Developer”) related 
to the storage of fill material on that certain tract or parcel of land being 93.4 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, as more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes (the “Property”), which is being developed as the Hawkes Landing Subdivision (the 
“Subdivision”).  The City’s ordinances provide that a subdivision may not be accepted if fill material is 
located on the property and that fill material may not be stored on property unless the property is being 
developed under unexpired construction plans approved by the City.  The City staff is preparing an 
amendment to the City’s ordinances that will allow the storage of fill material under certain terms and 
conditions.  The Developer wants to be able to store fill material on the Property and to proceed with 
construction of the Subdivision prior to the amendment being presented to the City Council, and the City is 
agreeable to allowing storage of fill material on the Property in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in this letter agreement. 
 
 Notwithstanding City ordinances that may provide otherwise, the Developer may store fill material 
on the Property during the development of the Subdivision, provided that the Developer complies with the 
following terms and conditions: 
 

1. The location of the fill material pile will be limited to an approximately 1 acre portion of the 
Property at the location generally shown on Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes. 

2. The fill material will consist of earthen material originating from the Property only, shall be and 
remain free from debris, and shall be suitable for use as fill material on the future phases of the 
Subdivision.  The fill material may not include any material from outside of the Property. 

3. The Developer shall comply with the Standard Storm Water Pollution Preventive Practices and 
other sedimentation and erosion controls adopted by the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality whilestoring the fill material. 

4. The fill material will be placed and stored in such manner so that it is stable, with the side slopes 
no steeper than a 3:1 (h:v) slope. 



 
 

  

5. The fill material will be located so as not to disturb any wetland areas that may exist on the 
Property, and will be placed in a manner and location so as not to adversely affect the natural 
course of drainage across the Property or impede drainage from neighboring properties. 

6. A letter of credit in an amount equal to the cost of removal of the fill material will be filed with the 
City prior to storage of any fill material on the Property under this Agreement(the “LOC”).  The 
LOC will be based on an estimate prepared by the Developer’s engineer for the Subdivision and 
approved by the City Engineer.  The letter of credit shall be in a form approved the City Attorney 
and shall be compliant with City ordinances governing requirements for letters of credit.   

7. The height of the fill material pile shall be limited to ten (10’) feet. 
8. The location of the fill material must comply with the following setback requirements: 

a. 400’ setback from major roadways as identified on the Roadway Plan 
b. 100’ setback from all other roadways platted at the time of the fill material pile approval 
c. 100’ setback from residential structures 

9. Permission to store fill material on the Property set forth in this Agreement will expire and 
terminate in the event that a preliminary plat, construction plans, or a final plat for any portion of 
the Property expires. 

 
 In the event that the Developer fails to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement or the 
expiration or termination of permission granted under this Agreement under section 9 above, the Developer 
shall remove the fill material within fourteen days of the City’s written notice to remove the fill material.  
The City may withhold future development approvals for the Subdivision and issue stop work orders forwork 
being done on the Subdivision if the Developer does not remove the fill material within the time set forth in 
the written notice.  In the event the Developer fails to remove the fill material, the City may draw on the letter 
of credit and use the funds to remove the fill material.  The Developer shall reimburse the City for any costs 
of removing the fill material that exceed the LOC within thirty days of written notice by the City. 
 
 This Agreement shall be effective on the date it is approved by the City Council, which date is April 
3, 2014, provided that it is executed by both parties. 

  
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 Kent Cagle 
 City Manager 
 
 
AGREED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
BLG Hawkes, LLC 
 
By:   
Name:  James Dorney 
Title:______________________________________ 
 
Date:  
  



 
 

  

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Description of Property  
  



 
 

  

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
Authorized Location of Fill Material 



cfields
Polygon

cfields
Callout
Proposed Stockpile+\-1 Acre

cfields
Polygon

cfields
Callout
Proposed Phase 1

rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT B



AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a proposal to establish a 
mobile food trailer on City-owned property at the corner of South St. and Brushy St. 
  
Background:  The City received a request from the applicant, Mona-Lee D'Aunno to utilize the 
City-owned lot south of City Hall for a mobile food trailer.  This agenda item is intended to 
allow the Council to provide direction to staff regarding this proposal.  If the Council is 
interested in allowing this use of the City property, staff will work with the applicant and the 
City Attorney to draft the appropriate agreements for Council consideration. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Mona-Lee D'Aunno 
 
Recommendation:  This item is for Council direction to staff.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Letter from applicant  
2. Map 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 







BAGDAD ST

W WILLIS ST

W SOUTH ST

N 
BR

US
HY

 ST
S B

RU
SH

Y S
T

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject PropertyPROPOSED FOOD TROLLEY LOCATION
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries



AGENDA ITEM # 24 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible action to approve a reimbursement agreement with 
Catalina Ranch, LLC for the oversizing of a wastewater line.  
  
Background:  The City has requested the developer of the Catalina Ranch subdivision to 
oversize a wastewater line that will be constructed through the property in order to serve adjacent 
properties when they develop. 
 
The reimbursement agreement provides for the City to reimburse the developer for the costs 
associated with oversizing and publicly bidding the project.  The reimbursement will be paid 
from 60% of the wastewater impact fees collected from properties within the Catalina Ranch 
subdivision and adjacent tracts that connect to the oversized wastewater line. 
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the reimbursement agreement.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Reimbursement Agreement 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 



 1 

 REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 
 CATALINA RANCH WASTEWATER MAIN 
 
 This Reimbursement Agreement for the Catalina Ranch Wastewater Main (the 
“Agreement”) is made and entered into, effective as of the ___ day of _______, 2014, by and 
between the CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (the 
“City”), and CATALINA RANCH, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (the “Developer”).  
The City and the Developer are sometimes referred to herein as the “Parties.”  The Parties agree 
as follows.  
 

Article I.  Purpose; Consideration. 
 
1.01. The Developer owns that certain 31.309-acre tract located in Williamson County, Texas, 
being more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes (the “Property”), which the Developer intends to develop as a single-family subdivision 
to be known as Catalina Ranch (the “Subdivision”).  The City desires to contract with the 
Developer to oversize a wastewater line as provided herein to serve the City’s customers located 
outside of the Property, with the City making one or more lump sum payments and/or rebating 
wastewater impact fees to the Developer as provided herein to offset the costs incurred by the 
Developer to oversize the wastewater line.  The Developer desires that the City’s eminent 
domain authority be used to acquire easements for the off-site utility project defined in Article 
III, which will be conveyed to and operated by the City as party of the City’s utility system upon 
completion, in the event that Developer is unable to acquire such easements. 
 
1.02. The City will benefit from this Agreement by virtue of the oversizing of wastewater line 
as provided herein.  The Developer will benefit from the use of the City’s eminent domain 
authority if needed to acquire easements for the off-site utility project. 
 
1.03. The benefits to the Parties set forth in this Article I, plus the mutual promises expressed 
herein, are good and valuable consideration for this Agreement, the sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged by both Parties.  
 

Article II.  Term; Termination. 
 
2.01. The term of this Agreement shall be ten (10) years from the Effective Date hereof, subject 
to earlier termination as provided in this Agreement. 
 
2.02. The Parties further mutually agree that this Agreement shall be in full force and effect 
upon the date first written above, provided that the City may terminate this Agreement if 
Developer fails to comply with this Agreement or fails to meet any deadlines imposed by this 
Agreement or the City’s ordinances. 
 

Article III.  Wastewater Line Project 
 
3.01. The project consists of the construction, installation, and extension of a wastewater 
gravity line, oversized from eight inches (8”) to twelve (12”) inches in diameter, along the route 



 2 

approved by the City and generally shown in Exhibit B (the “Project”).  The Project includes the 
wastewater line and those facilities and equipment required for the wastewater line to function 
efficiently, to provide service to the Property, and to comply with all applicable state and local 
rules, regulations and standards and good design and engineering practices.  The Developer shall 
complete and obtain City acceptance of the Project on or before the second (2nd) anniversary of 
the Effective Date of this Agreement. 
 

Article IV.  Project Engineer; Bidding of Project 
 
4.01. Gray Engineering, Inc. (the “Project Engineer”) will act as engineer for the Project, and 
the Project Engineer will prepare the design, construction plans and specifications, and 
supporting documentation for the Project in accordance with good engineering practices, the 
design and construction standards of all applicable state and local regulations and this 
Agreement.  The Project Engineer will work and coordinate with the City Engineer to obtain the 
timely review and approval by the Developer, the City Engineer and the Director of Development 
Services of the design, plans, specifications and construction of the Project.  The Developer shall 
be responsible for ensuring that the Project Engineer complies with the terms of this Agreement, 
including with regard to the responsibilities assigned to Engineer herein.   
 
4.02. The Project Engineer will advertise the Project for sealed competitive bids in compliance 
with Chapter 252 of the Texas Local Government Code based on the City Engineer approved 
design, plans and specifications, and recommend the lowest qualified bidder/contractor to 
Developer and the City.  The Project will be advertised for bids with  an alternate bid for an eight 
inch (8”) wastewater line (“Alternate #1”) and twelve (12”) inch wastewater line (“Alternate 
#2”), together with all equipment and related facilities and structures shown on the City approved 
plans and specifications for the Project.  The City Engineer shall evaluate the bids for Alternative 
#1 and Alternative #2 to determine whether the bids are fair and balanced prior to accepting a 
recommendation of bid award.  Any unbalanced or skewed bids, as determined by bid 
tabulations, will be appropriately corrected or rejected by the City.  
 

Article V.  Cost of the Project; Reimbursable Costs 
 
5.01. The Developer shall contract for, fund and pay for the design, bidding, contract 
negotiation, installation and construction of the Project and shall be entitled to rebates, as 
provided in Article VII below, of one hundred percent (100%) of the Reimbursable Costs 
(defined in Section 5.02 below) from the City, based on the oversizing of the wastewater line, as 
provided in Section 4.01 and Section 4.02 above, subject to the provisions and limitations set 
forth in this Agreement.  The Developer shall not receive any rebate or contribution from the City 
for any part or portion of any amenity or improvement required to be constructed within the 
Property; except that that the Developer shall be eligible to receive wastewater impact fee rebates 
up to the amount of the Reimbursable Costs for the portion of the Project that is being oversized 
as provided in Articles IV, V, and VII of this Agreement. 
 
5.02. The “Reimbursable Costs” for the Project, shall be: 
 



 3 

 (a)  the algebraic difference between the dollar amount of the approved bid for 
Alternate #1 and the dollar amount of the approved bid for Alternate #2; provided that all such 
sums and amounts shall have been paid by the Developer and are reasonable, necessary and 
documented to and approved by the City Engineer and Director of Development Services, or the 
City Council, as applicable; and 
 
 (b) the actual, reasonable, documented cost incurred by the Developer in 
competitively bidding the Project in accordance with Section 4.02, up to $8,000.00; and 
 
 (c)  a dollar amount equal to 0.1225 x [the agreed algebraic difference calculated 
pursuant to (a) above], unless the City reimburses the Developer in the full amount of the 
Reimbursable Costs set forth in (a) and (b) above within thirty (30) days after the date on which 
the Developer completes and obtains City acceptance of the Project. 
 

Article VI.  Additional Agreements and Performance  
 

6.01. The City hereby agrees: 
  

(a) to coordinate with the Project Engineer on specific design requirements and 
specifications; and to review, and to approve and sign the plans and specifications for the Project 
in a timely manner, as appropriate; 

 
(b) to review and approve the plans, specifications and bids for construction of the 

Project as obtained for and on behalf of the City by the Project Engineer and the Developer, as 
appropriate; 

 
(c) during the course of the Project, to review, approve and sign necessary and 

appropriate change orders in a timely manner; to perform all inspections of the Project in a timely 
manner; and to approve the Project in a timely manner if constructed in accordance with the City 
approved plans and specifications; 

 
(d) after completion and final acceptance by the City of the Project as constructed, to 

accept the Project as part of the City’s wastewater utility system; 
 
(e) after the Developer completes construction and obtains City acceptance of the 

Project and upon the Developer completing construction of the initial phase or section of the 
Subdivision in compliance with this Agreement and the City giving final acceptance of such 
phase or section of the Subdivision, the City will approve connections to the wastewater system 
and provide such services within the completed phase or section of the Subdivision on the same 
terms and conditions as then provided within other areas of the City; and 

 
(f) to review and process the applications made, and the plans and specifications 

submitted, by the Developer with respect to the Subdivision.         
 
6.02.    The Developer hereby agrees: 
 



 4 

(a) to finance, design, construct and install all required water, wastewater facilities, 
streets, drainage facilities and other amenities and improvements within the Property, or outside 
the boundaries of the Property, at Developer’s sole cost and expense (collectively, the 
“Subdivision Improvements”); provided that the Developer shall receive wastewater impact fee 
reimbursements for the Reimbursable Costs of the Project as provided in this Agreement; 
 

 
(b) to plan, plat, build-out, and complete development and construct and install the 

Project and the Subdivision Improvements in compliance with good design and engineering 
practices, the applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations, the Code of Ordinances and 
the rules and regulations of the City, this Agreement, and the environmental regulations 
otherwise applicable to the Property, as amended from time to time; 

 
(c) to contract with the Project Engineer for the design, preparation of the plans and 

specifications, and the provision of the services anticipated to be performed by the Project 
Engineer for the Project pursuant to and in compliance with Article IV; 

 
(d) to review and approve the plans and specifications for the Project (including the 

estimated cost of the Project), identify any design errors, defects or insufficiencies, and to advise 
the City Engineer as to any perceived error, defect or insufficiency prior to approving any such 
plans and specifications; 

 
(e) to work and coordinate with the City, and to assure the improvements constituting 

the Project are eligible for funding with capital impact fees pursuant to the City’s capital impact 
fee ordinance, prior to the execution of any contract for construction; 

 
(f) to enter into a contract with an appropriate contractor approved by the City 

pursuant to competitive bids approved by the City and the Developer for construction of the 
Project; 

 
(g) to pay to the City all fees and charges provided for or established by the codes, 

ordinances, rules and regulations of the City for or with respect to the development of the 
Subdivision when due, including, but not limited to, zoning and subdivision application fees, 
building permit fees, water and wastewater tap and use fees and capital recovery/impact fees; and 

 
(h) to timely perform and complete each task, duty and responsibility of the 

Developer set forth in this Agreement.  
 

Article VII.  Collection and Payment of Wastewater Impact Fees 
 

7.01.  The Developer, its grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of any portion 
of the Property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the Property that will be 
provided wastewater service by the City shall be required to pay the City’s wastewater impact fee 
(the “Wastewater Impact Fee”), established pursuant to Chapter 395 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, in the amount that is established by the City’s capital improvements plan and 
City ordinance, as amended, from time to time, and that is in effect when the fee is paid.  The 



 5 

Wastewater Impact Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the 
time the building permit for each building or structure located thereon is applied for, or, if no 
building permit is required, then upon the first to occur of the following:  (a) the date on which 
construction of the building or structure is first commenced, (b) the date on which an application 
is made to the City for a wastewater connection to serve the building or structure, or (c) the date 
on which wastewater service is requested for the lot, tract or parcel or building site. 
 
7.02. Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement, during the Term of this 
Agreement, the Developer shall receive a rebate of sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact 
Fees paid to the City for connections to the City’s wastewater utility system within:  (i) the 
Property; and (ii) within land or developments that connect to the Project by a direct connection 
or by a wastewater line that is not listed and included in the City’s capital improvements plan and 
City ordinance that establishes the Wastewater Impact Fees (the “Impact Fee Rebates”).  The 
Impact Fee Rebates will terminate on the earlier to occur of:  (i) the Developer receiving Impact 
Fee Rebates, or a combination of Impact Fee Rebates and one or more payments from the City 
equal to the Reimbursable Costs; (ii) the expiration of this Agreement; or (iii) the termination of 
this Agreement by reason of the Developer’s default.  The City may at any time, in its sole 
discretion, pay the Developer the balance of the Reimbursable Costs from any source of funds 
available to the City in one or more lump sum payments.  The City may suspend payment of 
Impact Fee Rebates if the Developer is in default of this Agreement until such time that the 
Developer cures the default. 
 
7.03.  Subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of this Agreement, the City will rebate 
sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact Fees as provided this Article, not to exceed the 
Reimbursable Costs for the Project.    Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing until 
the Impact Fee Rebates are terminated pursuant to this Agreement, the City will maintain a 
separate escrow account for the Wastewater Impact Fees (the “Escrow Account”).  The City will 
deposit into the Escrow Account sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact Fees paid to and 
received by the City for connections listed in this Article.  The Escrow Account will be held by 
the City and the Impact Fee Rebates paid out to Developer as provided in this Agreement.  
Payments of Impact Fee Rebates to the Developer shall begin after the Developer completes and 
obtains City acceptance of the Project.   
 
7.04.   Impact Fee Rebates will be paid by the City to the Developer quarterly in arrears.  Impact 
Fee Rebates will be paid on or before the 15th day of each April, July, October and January 
following the date on which the City receives the Wastewater Impact Fees.  The payments will be 
in an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact Fees collected by City 
during the three (3) calendar months preceding the month the scheduled payment is due and 
payable.  For example, if the City collects Wastewater Impact Fees for the connection of two (2) 
single-family lots within the Property in November and December 2014, on or before the 15th 
day of January 2015, the City will pay an Impact Fee Rebate to the Developer (or its assignee) in 
an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact Fees for the two (2) single-
family lots within the Property plus such other Wastewater Impact Fees as were collected during 
the prior quarter.  As further example, if for the months of January, February and March 2015 the 
City collects Wastewater Impact Fees for the connection of five (5) single-family lots within the 
Property, then, on or before April 15, 2015, the City will pay an Impact Fee Rebate to the 



 6 

Developer in an amount equal to sixty percent (60%) of the Wastewater Impact Fees for the five 
(5) single-family lots within the Property plus such other Wastewater Impact Fees as were 
collected during the prior quarter.  Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this 
Agreement, the City will discontinue rebating Wastewater Impact Fees at such time, if any, as the 
Developer, its grantees, successors and assigns, have: (i) been paid Wastewater Impact Fees in an 
amount equal to the Reimbursable Costs of the Project; or (ii) been paid a combination of 
Wastewater Impact Fees and one or more payments from the City in amounts equal to the 
Reimbursable Costs of the Project.  It is further specifically provided that the Developer shall not 
receive Impact Fee Rebates at anytime that such are in excess of the Reimbursable Costs of the 
Project.   
 

Article VIII.  Eminent Domain 
 
8.01. The Project is necessary and required improvements for the City’s wastewater system.  
The Project is included in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan and the cost of the Project is 
included in the calculation of the City’s wastewater impact fees.  The City will provide use of all 
necessary City lands, rights-of-way and easements (as appropriate) and will provide further 
required easements or lands in fee simple as may be necessary for construction of that part or 
portion of the Project that is located outside the boundaries of the Property.  It is acknowledged 
there is and exists a public necessity for the Project.  The Project will be a City capital 
improvement project and the City agrees to use its power of eminent domain to acquire such 
lands or easements as may be necessary for the construction of the Project.  The reasonable costs 
and expenses of the City obtaining any easements and land required for the Project only and 
located outside the boundaries of the Property shall be paid by the Developer. 
 

Article IX.  Assignment of Commitments and Obligations 
 
9.01. Developer Assignment of Agreement.  The Developer’s rights and obligations under 
this Agreement may be assigned by the Developer to one (1) or more purchasers of all or part of 
the Property; provided the City Council of the City must first approve and consent to any such 
assignment by the Developer of this Agreement or of any right or duty of the Developer pursuant 
to this Agreement, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  
 
9.02. Binding Obligations.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the Parties, their successors, and assigns.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to impose the 
Developer’s obligations on individual owners that purchase lots within the Subdivision for their 
personal use. 
 

Article X.  Default and Related Provisions 
 
10.01. Default.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no party shall be deemed to be 
in default hereunder until the passage of fourteen (14) business days after receipt by such party of 
notice of default from the other party. Upon the passage of fourteen (14) business days without 
cure of the default, such party shall be deemed to have defaulted for purposes of this Agreement; 
provided that if the nature of the default is that it cannot reasonably be cured within the fourteen 
(14) business day period, the defaulting party shall have a longer period of time as may be 



 7 

reasonably necessary to cure the default in question; but in no event more than sixty (60) days.  In 
the event of default, the non-defaulting party to this Agreement may pursue the remedy of 
specific performance or other equitable legal remedy not inconsistent with this Agreement.  All 
remedies will be cumulative and the pursuit of one authorized remedy will not constitute an 
election of remedies or a waiver of the right to pursue any other authorized remedy. 
 
10.02. Reservation of Rights.  To the extent not inconsistent with this Agreement, each party 
reserves all rights, privileges, and immunities under applicable laws, and neither party waives 
any legal right or defense available under law or in equity. 
 
10.03. Attorneys Fees.  A party shall not be liable to the other party for attorney fees or costs 
incurred in connection with any litigation between the parties, in which a party seeks to obtain a 
remedy from the other party, including appeals and post judgment awards. 
 
10.04. Waiver.  Any failure by a party to insist upon strict performance by the other party of any 
provision of this Agreement will not, regardless of length of time during which that failure 
continues, be deemed a waiver of that party’s right to insist upon strict compliance with all terms 
of this Agreement.  In order to be effective as to a party, any waiver of default under this 
Agreement must be in writing, and a written waiver will only be effective as to the specific 
default and as to the specific period of time set forth in the written waiver.  A written waiver will 
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent default, or of the right to require performance of the 
same or any other provision of this Agreement in the future. 
 
10.05. Force Majeure.   
 

(a) The term “force majeure” as employed herein shall mean and refer to acts of God; 
strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances: acts of public enemies, orders of any kind of 
the government of the United States, the State of Texas or any civil or military authority; 
insurrections; riots; epidemic; landslides; lightning, earthquakes; fires, hurricanes; storms, 
floods; washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; 
explosions; breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, or canals; or other causes not 
reasonably within the control of the party claiming such inability. 

 
(b) If, by reason of force majeure, any party hereto shall be rendered wholly or 

partially unable to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then such party shall give 
written notice of the full particulars of such force majeure to the other party within ten (10) days 
after the occurrence thereof.  The obligations of the party giving such notice, to the extent 
effected by the force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability claimed, 
except as hereinafter provided, but for no longer period, and the party shall endeavor to remove 
or overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch. 

 
(c) It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be 

entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement 
that any force majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require that the 
settlement be unfavorable in the judgment of the party having the difficulty. 
  



 8 

Article XI.  Notices 
 
11.01. Any notice to be given hereunder by any party to another party shall be in writing and 
may be effected by personal delivery or by sending said notices by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, to the address set forth below.  Notice shall be deemed given when 
deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage affixed. 
 
 Any notice mailed to the City shall be addressed: 
 

 City of Leander    
 Attn:  City Manager    
 200 West Willis    
 P.O. Box 319     
 Leander, Texas 78646-0319    

 
 with copy to: 
 
  Knight & Partners 
  Attn:  Paige H. Saenz 
  223 West Anderson Lane, #A105 
  Austin, Texas 77852 
 
 Any notice mailed to the Developer shall be addressed: 
 

 Catalina Ranch, LLC 
 Attn:  Joseph W. Straub 
 4408 Spicewood Springs Road 
 Austin, Texas 78759 
 
with a copy to: 
 
 Armbrust & Brown, PLLC 
 Attn:  Kevin M. Flahive 
 100 Congress Avenue, Suite 1300 
 Austin, Texas 78701 

 
Any party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of such change in accordance 
with the provisions of this section. 
 

Article XII.  Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

12.01. The Parties acknowledge the mutual promises and obligations of the Parties expressed 
herein are good, valuable and sufficient consideration for this Agreement.  The Parties further 
acknowledge the City and the Developer voluntarily elected the benefits and obligations of this 
Agreement, as opposed to the benefits available were the Developer to have elected to develop 
the Property without the benefits and obligations of this Agreement, pursuant to and in 



 9 

compliance with the applicable City ordinances.  Therefore, save and except the right to enforce 
the obligations of the City to perform each and all of the City’s duties and obligations under this 
Agreement, the Developer hereby waives any and all claims or causes of action against the City 
that the Developer may have for or with respect to any duty or obligation undertaken by the 
Developer pursuant to this Agreement, including any benefits that may have been otherwise 
available to the Developer but for this Agreement.  
  
12.02.  This Agreement, together with any exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire 
agreement between Parties and may not be amended except by a writing approved by the City 
Council of the City that is signed by all Parties and dated subsequent to the date hereof. 
 
12.03. The terms of this Agreement are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create any 
partnership or joint venture among the parties.  The City, its past, present and future officers, 
elected officials, employees and agents, do not assume any responsibilities or liabilities to any 
third party in connection with the development of the Property.  The City enters into this 
Agreement in the exercise of its public duties and authority to provide for development of 
property within the City pursuant to its police powers and for the benefit and protection of the 
public health, safety, and welfare. 
 
12.04. This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be construed, to create any third-party 
beneficiary rights in any person or entity who is not a party, unless expressly provided otherwise 
herein, or in a written instrument executed by both the City and the third party.  Absent a written 
agreement between the City and third party providing otherwise, if a default occurs with respect 
to an obligation of the City under this Agreement, any notice of default or action seeking a 
remedy for such default must be made by the Owner. 
 
12.05.   The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date set forth in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement. 

 
12.06.   This Agreement or a memorandum of Agreement acceptable to the City and the 
Developer shall be recorded in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas. 
 
12.07.   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and shall be performable in Williamson County, Texas.  Venue shall lie 
exclusively in Williamson County, Texas. 
 
12.08.   It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that time is of the essence in the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
12.09.   Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement, and made a part 
hereof for all purposes: 
 
 Exhibit A – Property Description 
 Exhibit B – General Project Location 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



 10 

EXECUTED in multiple originals this the ____ day of ________________, 2014. 
 
 
      CITY: 
 
      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, 

 a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
Attest: 
 
By:       By:      
Name: Debbie Haile    Name:  Christopher Fielder 
Title:  City Secretary    Title: Mayor                 
                                                
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2014, 
by Christopher Fielder, Mayor of the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation.  

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
      DEVELOPER: 
 
      CATALINA RANCH, LLC, 

 a Texas limited liability company 
      
 
      By:      
       Joseph W. Straub, Manager 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2014, 
by Joseph W. Straub, Manager of Catalina Ranch, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on 
behalf of said limited liability company.  

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 



{W0611511.2} A-1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
 
 



{W0611511.2} A-2 

 
 



{W0611511.2} B-1 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

GENERAL LOCATION OF PROJECT 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 25 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding a proposal to establish a 
Public Improvement District (PID) and a TIRZ development and reimbursement agreement for 
the Oak Creek project. 
  
Background:  The City Council conducted a workshop on December 5, 2013 to discuss public 
improvement districts and the potential to create a PID for two specific projects.  One of those 
projects was the Oak Creek development near the intersection of 183 and San Gabriel Blvd.  
Since that meeting, the Oak Creek project has continued to progress with applications for zoning 
and preliminary plat.  The developers of Oak Creek have also met with staff to discuss their 
proposal to create a PID on the property and to enter an agreement for TIRZ reimbursements for 
certain infrastructure improvements associated with the project. 
 
This agenda item is intended to allow the applicant to present their proposal for the PID and 
TIRZ agreements and for the Council to provide direction to staff prior to the next steps being 
taken to formalize the agreements. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Sentinel/Cotter Leander, LLC 
 
Recommendation:  This item is for Council direction to staff.   
 
Attachments:  

1. PID and TIRZ proposal 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 













AGENDA ITEM # 26 

 

 
Executive Summary 

April 3, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Discussion and possible action to approve the third amendment to the 
Nameless Valley Ranch Development Agreement.  
  
Background:  The applicant has proposed the third amendment to the development agreement to 
reflect the PUD zoning for the project as approved by City Council on first reading March 20, 
2014. 
 
The original agreement was approved May 3, 2012.  It was amended on November 1, 2012.  The 
agreement was assigned to Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc. on December 20, 2012 and 
subsequently to Travisso, Ltd. on May 16, 2013 at which time a second amendment was also 
approved. 
 
As discussed at the March 20, 2014 City Council meeting at the first reading of the PUD 
ordinance, staff has incorporated in this amendment the requirement for the developer to 
construct sidewalks along RM 1431 in the future at such time as TXDOT provides areas for 
pedestrian facilities. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of Texas, Inc) 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the amendment.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Third amendment to Development Agreement 
2. Original Development Agreement 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 3/26/14 



1 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

FOR THE NAMELESS VALLEY RANCH 
 

This Third Amendment to the Development Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch 
(this “Third Amendment”) is made and entered into as of ___________________, 2014, 
by and between the City of Leander, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (the 
“City”), and Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership (“Owner”). The City and 
Developer are sometimes referred to herein collectively as the “Parties”.   
 

RECITALS 
 

Whereas, the City and Lookout Partners, L.P. (“Lookout”), a Texas limited 
partnership, and Key-Deer Holdings, L.P. (“Key-Deer”), a Texas limited partnership, 
each acting by their General Partner, Morningside Land & Cattle Company 
(“Morningside”), a Texas limited liability company, entered into the Development 
Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch, effective as of the May 3, 2012, and that First 
Amendment to the Development Agreement dated as of November 1, 2012; 

 
Whereas, Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation (“Taylor 

Morrison”) purchased and acquired the Property and the rights, titles and obligations of 
Lookout, Key-Deer and Morningside (hereinafter referred to collectively as the 
“Morningside Parties”) under the Development Agreement, as amended; and on 
December 20, 2012, the City Council authorized and approved the assignment of the 
Development Agreement, as amended, and all the rights, titles and obligations of the 
Morningside Parties pursuant to the Development Agreement, as amended, to Taylor 
Morrison;  

 
Whereas, Owner, an affiliate of Taylor Morrison, purchased and acquired the 

Property and the rights, titles and obligations of Taylor Morrison under the Development 
Agreement, as amended; and on or about May 16, 2013, the City Council authorized 
and approved the assignment of the Development Agreement, as amended, and all the 
rights, titles and obligations of Taylor Morrison pursuant to the Development Agreement, 
as amended, to Owner; 

 
Whereas, the City and Owner entered into the Second Amendment to the 

Development Agreement dated May 16, 2013, and the Second Addendum to the 
Development Agreement dated November 15, 2013; 

 
Whereas, the Development Agreement-Nameless Valley Ranch, the First 

Amendment, the Second Amendment, and the Second Addendum are herein referred 
to, collectively, as the “Agreement”; and 

 
Whereas, the Parties desire to further amend the Agreement to reflect the City 

Council’s adoption of an ordinance rezoning the Property as planned unit development 
district and to provide that such ordinance shall govern development of the Property, 



2 

rather than the Use Map, attached to the Agreement as Exhibit “B”, and the Zoning Map 
attached to the Agreement as Exhibit “B-1”. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
For and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, obligations, and 

benefits described in this Third Amendment the City and Developer hereby contract, 
covenant and agree as follows: 

 
Section 1.  Definitions. 

 
(a) All terms delineated with initial capital letters but not defined in this Third 

Amendment will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Agreement. 
 
(b) The definition of “Applicable Requirements” in Article I of the Agreement 

is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
“Applicable Requirements” means and includes the applicable federal and 
state laws, rules and regulations, and the Environmental Regulations, as 
they exist from time to time during the Term of the Agreement.  Such term 
also means and includes the applicable provisions of the City Charter, the 
City Code, and the Land Development Regulations, Ordinances and 
Environmental Regulations of the City, as they exist on the Effective Date 
including, but not limited to, authorized amendments adopted by the City 
in compliance with Section 3.15, and the PUD Ordinance. 
 
(c) A definition of “PUD Ordinance” is added to Article I of the Agreement as 

follows:   
 
“PUD Ordinance” means Ordinance No. ________ amending the zoning 
ordinance by rezoning the Property, including the ETJ Land and the In-
City Land, to planned unit development district. 
 
(d) The definition of “Use Map” in Article I of the Agreement is hereby deleted 

and replaced with the following:   
 
“Use Map” means the Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan for the 
PUD, as defined in and attached to the PUD Ordinance. 
 
(e) The definition of “Zoning Map” in Article I of the Agreement is hereby 

deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
“Zoning Map” means the Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan for 
the PUD, as defined in and attached to the PUD Ordinance. 
 

Section 2.  Land Use.  Article II of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 



3 

 
(a) Section 2.01 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and 

replaced with the following: 
 
Section 2.01.  Uses and Densities.   
 
(a) The Concept Plan shall be used, applied and accorded the 

entitlements provided for concept plans in the Applicable Regulations.  
 

(b) On May 17, 2012, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 12-023-00 
annexing the ETJ Land into the City.  On ____________, 2014, the 
City Council approved the PUD Ordinance.  The use of land within the 
Property shall be governed by the PUD Ordinance. 

 
(c) In the event of any conflict between the Applicable Requirements, and 

the Concept Plan, save and except as specifically provided in the 
Agreement, as amended, the Applicable Requirements shall control.  
In the event of any direct conflict between the Applicable Requirements 
and the Agreement, the Agreement, as amended, shall control.  Unless 
specifically modified by the PUD ordinance, the Applicable 
Requirements shall control. 

 
 (b) Section 2.03 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 
 

Section 2.03.  Municipal Services Plan.  The Municipal Service Plan 
agreed to and accepted by Owner with respect to the annexation of the 
ETJ Land, attached as Exhibit “C”, shall be applicable to the ETJ Land.  
The Developer accepts and agrees to develop the Property in accordance 
with the PUD Ordinance.  

 
Section 3.  Site Development, Applicable Ordinances and Related Matters.  Article 
III of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 
 

(a) Section 3.03 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 

 
Section 3.03.  Concept Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  In the event of a 
conflict between the Concept Plan and the PUD Ordinance with regard to 
the location of land uses the PUD Ordinance shall control.   

 
 (b) Section 3.13 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 
 
 Section 3.13.  Landscaping and Sidewalks. 
 



4 

(a)  Owner shall provide landscaping in the Property that equals or 
exceeds the requirements provided in the Applicable Requirements, 
subject to the variances obtained pursuant to this Agreement, and 
provided that in no event shall there be any variance from the 
requirements of the water conservation ordinance or drought 
contingency plan.  Owner shall obtain a license agreement from the 
City for landscaping that will be located within any right-of-way or 
property that is dedicated to the City.  A property owners association 
shall be established as provided in this Agreement and required to 
maintain all such landscaping. 

 
(b) Owner shall not be obligated to construct sidewalks along the portions 

of RM 1431 abutting the Property in accordance with the Applicable 
Requirements unless and until such time that the Texas Department of 
Transportation improves RM 1431 in such areas abutting the Property 
for the purpose of providing areas for pedestrian facilities, at which 
time Owner shall be obligated to install and complete sidewalks along 
the portions of RM 1431 abutting the Property in a timely manner. 

 
Section 4.  Owner Obligations.  Section 5.01 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

Section 5.01.  Owner Obligations.  The Owner will comply with and 
perform each of the duties and responsibilities required by this Agreement 
to be performed by Owner.  Owner shall develop the Property in 
compliance with the PUD Ordinance, the Concept Plan, and the 
Applicable Requirements.  The Property will be developed in phases 
consistent with the approved Preliminary Plats and Final Plats (as those 
terms are defined in the Applicable Requirements) of the Property.  
Amendment of the zoning or the subdivision plats approved for the 
Property shall be subject to the process, notice, hearings and procedures 
provided by the Applicable Requirements.  The Property will be developed 
and occupied for permitted uses, in compliance with the PUD Ordinance, 
Applicable Requirements, and good engineering practices. 

 
Section 5.  Commercial Retail and/or Office Development.  Section 10.08 of the 
Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
 
Section 6.  Exhibits.  Section 12.23 of the Agreement is hereby amended to delete 
Exhibit “B”-Use Map and Exhibit “B-1”-Zoning Map, and those exhibits are hereby 
deleted in their entirety. 
 
Section 7.  Entire Agreement.  This Third Amendment, together with the Agreement, 
sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior agreements 
and understandings, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter hereof. 
 



5 

Section 8.  Binding Effect.  This Third Amendment will extend to and be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto their respective successors and permitted 
assigns. 
 
Section 9. Effect of Amendment.  The parties agree that, except as modified 
hereby, the Agreement remains valid, binding, and in full force and effect.  If there is any 
conflict or inconsistency between this Third Amendment and the Agreement, this Third 
Amendment will control and modify the Agreement. 
 
Section 10. Counterparts.  This Third Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, including, without limitation, facsimile counterparts, with the same effect 
as if the parties had signed the same document, and all counterparts will constitute one 
and the same agreement. 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.] 



6 

 
In Witness Whereof, this instrument is executed and in effect as of ______________. 
 
 
       City of Leander 
 
 
Attest: 
       By: ___________________ 
       Name: Kent Cagle 
________________________   Title:   City Manager 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the          day of                  , 2014, 
by Kent Cagle, City Manager, City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of the City.                                                            
      
       ________________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 
 
 
 
        



7 

       TRAVISSO, LTD., 
       a Texas limited partnership 
 
       By: TMC TRAVISSO GP, LLC,  
       a Texas limited liability company,  
       its general partner 
 
 
 
       By:       

       Name:       

       Title:  Vice President 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the        day of                  , 2014, 
by                                               as Vice President of TMC Travisso GP, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, general partner of Travisso, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, 
on behalf of said limited liability company and limited partnership. 
 
 
                                                                           

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas  
























































































































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23
	Item # 24
	Item # 25
	Item # 26
















